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May 7, 2003

To the Citizens of the City of Pembroke Pines:

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish within one year of the close of each
fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Additionally, the City's charter requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial records and
transactions of all departments of the City by independent certified public accountants. Pursuant to these
requirements, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Pembroke Pines for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Pembroke
Pines. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the compkteness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both
to protect the City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City of Pembroke Pines’ financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City's financial statements have been audited by Rachlin Cohen & Holtz LLP, a licensed certified
public accounting firm. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a rasonable basis for rendering an unqualified
opinion that the City of Pembroke Pines' financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Pembroke Pines was part of a broader,
federally and state mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal and state
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the City's internal controls
and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards and state financial assistance. There were no
Single Audit findings during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City
of Pembroke Pines’ MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Pembroke Pines is the 9" largest city in Florida. As of September 30, 2002, the most recent
official population estimate was 144,792. The City is located about 15 miles southwest of Fort
Lauderdale, in Broward County. Pembroke Pines has an area of approximately 35 square miles and is
bordered on the east by the City of Hollywood and extends westerly to the Conservation District.
Commercial support includes over 50 neighborhood and community shopping centers, which are capable
of supplying needed goods and services for the area.

The City of Pembroke Pines was incorporated on January 19, 1960 and operates under a Commission-
Manager form of government. The City Commission is comprised of the Mayor and four members and is
responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions and regulations governing the City as well as appointing
the members of various advisory boards, the City Manager and City Attorney. As Chief Administrative
Officer, the City Manager is responsible for enforcement of laws and ordinances and appoints and
supervises the department directors of the City.

In addition to providing residents with public safety, general government, leisure, and public work
services, the City provides water, sewer, sanitation, a recycling program, a multipurpose Walter C.
Young Resource Center, recreation facilities and owns and operates seven Charter Schools.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Pembroke Pines’ financial planning and
control. All departments of the City are required to submit proposed budgets to the City Manager, who
then makes any necessary revisions. The City Manager then presents to the City Commission for their
review, a budget estimate of the expenditures and revenues of all the City’s departments and divisions.
Two public hearings are then conducted to inform the taxpayers of the proposed budget and to receive
their comments. A majority affirmative vote of the quorum is needed to adopt the budget, which is
legally enacted prior to October 1st by the passage of an ordinance. The City’s budget is approved at the
department level. The City Manager and Finance Director may amend the adopted budget for adjustments
within a department. The City Commission must approve all other budget adjustments as well as any
supplemental appropriations of revenues and expenditures. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in
this report for the general fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. The general
fund comparison is presented on page 69 as part of the required supplementary information.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Pembroke Pines
operates.

Local Economy

The City of Pembroke Pines’ positioning for progress is undoubtedly ensured for periods that extend far
beyond the forty-two years of its existence. Its geographic location, surrounded by the affluent tri-county
market of Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach counties, opens up an area that has a population of
more than five million with retail sales that exceed $56 billion. Furthermore, it has access to a superb
transportation system, including the superhighway connecting the Fort Lauderdale/Hollywood



International Airport and Port Everglades, the deepest seaport between Norfolk and New Orleans.

Essential to its progress is the City's pro-business attitude; it has an open door policy with the private
sector, working with business on a daily basis. The City’s strict zoning regulations, and a balanced land-
use plan provide for the orderly development of industrial, commercial, residential, and recreational
development.

The City's average unemployment rate during the fiscal year in contrast to the other levels of government
is shown below:

City of Pembroke Pines 3.9%
Broward County 5.9%
State of Florida 5.3%
United States 5.8%

According to the 2000 Census, as published by the U. S. Census Bureau, employment of the residents in
Pembroke Pines is dominated by the service industry, which accounted for approximately 70% of its
employment, 19% represented retail and wholesale trade, while manufacturing and construction
accounted for 11%. It is also interesting to note that the 80% of employed individuals in Pembroke Pines
work in private industry, 14% are government employees, and the other 6% are self-employed. These
numbers are also representative of similar trends for Broward County and throughout the State of Florida.
This means that in an economic decline, the City and the State as a whole is likely to be more negatively
affected, but will experience rapid growth in an economic boom. In anticipation of increases in demand
for goods and services, the City has taken initiatives to improve the quality of life of its residents by
effective planning and forecasting techniques.

The City, in its effort to provide educational and life-long advancement facilities to its residents, and to
meet the ever-increasing demands for these facilities, completed in January 2003, the construction of the
80,000 sq. ft. shared-use facility that consists of classrooms and an auditorium. The Academic Village
currently consists of a Charter High School, the Southwest Regional Branch of the Broward County
Library, and a branch campus of Broward Community College. The addition of Florida International
University (FIU) will help to establish this facility as a focal point of learning and advancement for the
residents of the City. The facility also includes a sixteen (16) acre natural preserve with elevated
observation walkways.

Although the City is over 95% built out, Pembroke Pines continues to maintain the lowest tax rate of any
full-service city in Broward County, and currently has the ninth lowest millage rate for all the 30 cities in
Broward. Fiscal year 2002 was the first time in five consecutive years that the City increased its millage
rate to 4.4597 from 3.9034. Pembroke Pines is beginning to experience a state of increasing demand for
services with limited available resources. Yet, the City is steadfast in its resolve to continue to be
progressive and by leveraging its current resources in innovative ways, will thereby remain true to its
motto *“ Join us and progress with us”.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Construction of the City’s fourth Charter Elementary School located at Pembroke Shores Park is currently
under way. It will provide 600 student stations costing approximately $7,500,000. Funding for this
project is currently being finalized. The Charter Agreement to operate this school is between Florida
State University and the City of Pembroke Pines. It was signed on February 3, 2003 for a 15-year term
commencing July 1, 2003 and ending June 30, 2018. Construction began on December 23, 2002 with
completion expected in August 2003 in time for the 2003-2004 school year.

iii



On March 1, 2001, the City entered into a 50-year lease with the State of Florida for a 157-acre property.
The City has since then renovated a number of buildings and the facility is now known as the Howard C.
Forman Human Services Campus. It will be subleased to various health, educational, professional and
residential treatment facilities, and long-term care organizations. In addition, the City is exploring the
possibility of building approximately 400 senior housing units on the premises. Approximately 26 acres
have been subleased, through the State, for 50 years to the Miami Jewish Home and Hospital for the
Aged, Inc. This organization will build an independent living facility of 128 units with 152 beds, an
assisted living facility of 96 units with 120 beds, and a special care section of 39 units with 60 beds.

On March 27, 2003, the City received a $2,000,000 grant from the Broward County Conservation, Green
Space and Open Spaces Grant Program. In addition, the City anticipates receiving approximately
$750,000 from the State of Florida to pay for the purchase of 64 acres. The acquisition of 57 acres took
place on September 26, 2002 at a cost of $2,349,510. The purchase of the remaining seven acres has not
been finalized. Approximately 70% of this property will be maintained as wetlands. The remainder will
be used to build six soccer fields, restrooms, concession stands and parking facilities. The estimated cost
to develop this property is $2,500,000. The funds to develop this project were borrowed on a previous
bond issue.

The City is contemplating the purchase and development of 115 acres of land adjacent to City Hall. This
purchase would allow the City to monitor the development of the land to conform to the “City Center”
concept and theme for a mixed-use facility consisting of compatible shops, commercial space, residential,
and a hotel. At this point, it is in the preliminary stages and no commitments have been made. In the
event the City decides it is in the public interest to purchase the land, the up-front cost would total
between $21 and $25 million for acquisition. This cost would be recovered through the sale of prepared
sites.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

The City invests operating funds in an effort to earn a competitive yield on its portfolio. This is consistent
with its primary objective of safeguarding public assets by minimizing the level of credit and market risks
assumed. The investment priority is safety of capital, liquidity of funds, and investment income, in that
order. To that end, the City’s investments are guided by a detailed investment policy, adopted by
Ordinance and further explained in Note 3a of the notes to the basic financial statements. During the year,
surplus funds were administered by the State Board of Administration, managed by external investment
managers and invested in certificates of deposit.

During the year, the City had operating funds invested with the following money managers:

Money Manager Average Balance Interest Income  Rate of Return (%)
State Board of Administration $72,747,278 $1,491,661 2.06%
Florida League of Cities $20,839,332 $1,910,151 7.86%
Evergreen Investment Management Co. $29,288,736 $2,608,153 8.32%

In FY 2002, the City earned $6,545,712 in investment income, as compared with $8,610,731 earned in
fiscal year 2001; this represents a 24% decrease from the previous year. The average rate of return for the
entire portfolio was 5.52%, a 35% decline from the previous year. The performance of the portfolio was
primarily attributable to an overall decline in interest rates during the year. The City will continue to
closely monitor and evaluate its investment earnings and portfolio holdings as new economic conditions
unfold.
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Self-Insurance Program

The City’s slf-insurance program is funded in the Public Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund).
Self-Insured Retention (SIR) applies to each specific type of coverage as follows:

Self-Insurance
Retention Per

Coverage Occurrence Insured
General/Auto Liability $150,000 $ 1,000,000
Property 25,000 190,497,335
Fidelity Bond 25,000 75,000
Workers’ Compensation 200,000 Statutory (unlimited)

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits

The City maintains two single -employer defined benefit pension plans: the General Employees Pension
Plan (GEPP) and the City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers (CPFFPO). Once a year, an
independent actuary is engaged by the pension plans to calculate the amount of the annual contribution
that the City must make to ensure that the plans will be able to fully meet their obligations to retired
employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, the City fully funds each year's annual required
contribution to the pension plans as determined by the actuary. As at September 30, 2002, the net assets
of the GEPP totaled $44,253,599 and the assets of the CPFFPO totaled $80,499,679.

In addition to the defined benefit plans described above, the City maintains two defined contribution plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). One plan provides pension benefits for
upper management, department directors, and their assistants. The City contributes the same percentage
of annual covered payroll, consistent with the GEPP. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 the
City contributed 20.56%; and the employees contribute 5%. The other plan provides benefits for the
employees of the Charter Schools and Early Learning Centers. The City’s required contribution to this
plan is 5% of the plan members’ gross salary.

The City also provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for retirees. Spouses are
included in this coverage, for a limited number of employees hired before October 1, 1991. As at
September 30, 2002 there were 138 retirees receiving this benefit.

Additional information on the City's pension arrangements and postemployment benefits can be found in
Notes 4d, 4e and 4f in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Pembroke Pines for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. This was the
seventeenth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Additionally, the City received the Government Finance Officers Association’s Award for Distinguished
Budget Presentation for its annual appropriated budget dated October 1, 2001. The City of Pembroke
Pines has received this award consecutively since the fiscal year beginning October 1, 1997. In order to
qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be
proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning, and organization.

The preparation of the CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire
staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the
contributions made in preparation of this report. Special recognition is given to the firm of Rachlin
Cohen & Holtz LLP for their assistance and professionalism.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mayor and the City Commissioners, preparation of
this report would not have been possible.

Sincerely,

Charles F. Dodge René Gonzilez h 3

City Manager Finance Director
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Pembroke Pines,
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Rachlin Cohen & Holtz rLip

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

RCH

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor, City Commission and City Manager
City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pembroke Pines,
Florida (the City) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, which, collectively, comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We did not audit the Pension Trust
Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers, which represents 63% and 58%, respectively, of the assets and
contributions of the fiduciary fund type. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the Pension Trust Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As disclosed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the City implemented the new financial reporting
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for States and Local Governments.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2002, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 6,
2002 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.
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Honorable Mayor, City Commission and City Manager
City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Page Two

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information on pages 3-17 and
pages 69-71, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying information identified in the table of
contents as combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Similarly, the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organization; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and,
accordingly, we express no opinion thereon.

[ blini 4@.‘% LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
December 6, 2002
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Pembroke Pines, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that is furnished in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i to vi of this report.

This is the first year that the City has reported its financial statements in a government-wide format using the
GASB Statement Number 34 reporting model. Thus, comparative information from prior years in the GASB
34 format is not available. Fund-based financial reporting and government-wide financial reporting are not
viewed as being in conflict; however, they are not comparable. Since government-wide comparative
information is not available this year, the City's fund-based comparative information is being used in selected
sections.

Financial Highlights

® The assets of the City of Pembroke Pines exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $376.7 million (net assets). Of this amount, $35.3 million (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
The City's total net assets increased by $17.5 million during the current fiscal year.
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $143.1 million, an increase of $8.3 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 5.2 percent of this total amount is available for spending at the government's
discretion (unrestricted fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted net assets of the City’s governmental activities were
$7.4 million, or 5.7 percent of total governmental activities expenses.

e The City's total debt increased by $48.6 million (48 percent) during the current fiscal year. The
increase was due primarily to the issuance of $52.0 million of revenue bonds for the construction of
Charter Schools.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Pembroke Pines' basic
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. In addition
to these basic financial statements, this report contains other supplementary information.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include public safety, physical environment,
transportation, economic environment, human services, culture and recreation, and general government
services. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18-19 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating the City's near term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govermmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and Capital Projects funds, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements on pages 72-75 of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget (page 69). The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. An enterprise fund is used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations. An internal service fund is used
to account for the City’s insurance coverage’s provided to all departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
The City of Pembroke Pines is self-insured.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-27 of this report.

4-
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Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 30-68 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information including the budgetary comparison schedule of the
General Fund and information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension
benefits to its employees.

Required supplementary information can be found on pages 69-71 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds is presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 72-78 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Since this is the first year that the City has reported its financial statements in a government-wide format
using the GASB Statement Number 34 reporting model, comparative information from prior years in the
GASB 34 format is not available. Therefore, in lieu of government-wide comparative information, fund-
based comparative information is being provided in selected sections. In future years, a comparative analysis
of government-wide data will be presented.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time

Net Assets
as a useful indicator of the.City's financial for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
position. In the case of the City of Pembroke
Pines, total net assets exceeded liabilities by 300
$376.7 million at the close of the most recent 250
fiscal year. By far the largest portion of the g 200
City's net assets (72 percent) represents £ 150
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, E 100
buildings, machinery and equipment), less any 50
related outstanding debt used to acquire those 0 '
assets. The City uses these capital assets to Invested in ctapfital Restricted Unrestricted
provide services to citizens; consequently, they rel;zze;zgf °

are not available for future spending. Although
the City's investment in its capital assets is '
reported net of related debt, it should be noted O Governmental 8 Business Type

that the resources needed to repay this debt
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must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities.

An additional portion of the City's net assets, $70.9 million (19 percent), represent resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $35.3

million (9 percent) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

City of Pembroke Pines' Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Current and other assets $49,724,837 $ 9,155,366 $ 58,880,203
Restricted assets 34,918,998 54,961,490 89,880,488
Capital assets, net 259,636,439 153,811,331 413,447,770
Total assets 344,280,274 217,928,187 562,208,461
Long-term liabilities 163,729,591 996,125 164,725,716
Other liabilities 37433477  (16,674,657) 20,758,820
Total liabilities 201,163,068  (15,678,532) 185,484,536
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 116,772,277 153,811,331 270,583,608
Restricted 18,913,070 51,957,510 70,870,580
Unrestricted 7.431,859 27,837,878 35,269,737
Total net assets 143.117,.206 233,606,719 $376.723.925

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.
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City of Pembroke Pines' Changes in Net Assets

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services

Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions

General Revenues:

Property taxes

Franchise fees on gross receipts

Other taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Other miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government services
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture/Recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water utility services
Sewer/wastewater services
Water-sewer combined service
Total Expenses

Change in net assets
Net assets- beginning
Net assets- ending

Governmental Business-type
Activities

Activities

Total

$52,759,294  $ 34,730,886 $ 87,490,180

3,630,457 - 3,630,457
4,120,865 - 4,120,865
25,230,301 - 25,230,301
8,272,014 - 8,272,014
19,457,804 - 19,457,804
2,466,261 - 2,466,261
10,560,558 - 10,560,558
10,307,458 - 10,307,458
2,578.463 4,029,709 6,608,172
139,383,475 38,760,595 178,144,070
20,085,237 - 20,085,237
54,363,115 - 54,363,115
3,184,132 - 3,184,132
5,785,707 - 5,785,707
2,154,679 - 2,154,679
24,138,249 - 24,138,249
14,640,884 - 14,640,884
6,722,426 - 6,722,426

- 3,843,161 3,843,161

- 8,590,253 8,590,253

- 17,112,758 _ 17,112,758
131,074.429 29,546,172 160,620,601
8,309,046 9,214,423 17,523,469
134,808,160 224,392,296 359.200.456
$143.117,206 $233.606.719 $376.723.925



Governmental activities. Net assets of the City's governmental activities increased by 6.2 percent
($8.3 million) from $134.8 million in last fiscal year compared to $143.1 million in the current
fiscal year. Expenses for the most part increased moderately during the current year and were well
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under budgeted levels.

City of Pembroke Pines
Expenses & Program Revenues-Governmental Activities

B Expenses Prog. Revenues
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Pembroke Pines
uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's
governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances
of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of the
City's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the
City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances (both reserved and

unreserved) of $37.2 million, an increase of $23.4 million in comparison with the prior year. This increase
was mainly due to increased cost awareness, resulting in lower than anticipated expenditures. Approximately
48.2 percent of this total amount ($17.9 million) represents unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed for a variety of restricted purposes, such as

Governmental Fund Balances
for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

20
15
2 10
=
= 5
=
E 0
) L]
(10)
General | Debt | Capital | Other
Fund | Service | Projects |Governm
O Unreserved 15.21 (6.19) 8.90
Fund Balance
@ Reserved Fund | 1.70 11.73 4.82 1.00

Balance

construction projects, grant expenditures and encumbrances.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. General tax revenues and other receipts that are not
allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating
expenses, fixed charges and capital improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid from this fund.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $15.2 million, and

reserved fund balance was $1.7 million, for a total fund balance of $16.9 million.

-10-
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The amount of General Fund revenue by type, their percent of the total and the amount of change compared
to last fiscal year are shown in the following schedule:

Revenue Sources

Property taxes
Franchise fees

Other taxes

Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenues

Total revenues

Percent Increase Percentage

2002 Percent of 2001 of (Decrease) of Increase

Amount Total Amount Total From 2001 (Decrease)
$24,235,301 25% $18,215,935 21% $6,019,366 33%
7,550,181 8% 8,479,230 10% (929,049) -11%
14,700,707 15% 10,368,643 12% 4,332,064 42%
7,389,152 7% 7,315,983 9% 73,169 1%
9,141,666 9% 9,052,457 11% 89,209 1%
9,758,986 10% 8,231,730 10% 1,527,256 19%
19,964,434 20% 17,773,723 21% 2,190,711 12%
850,608 1% 1,033,433 1% (182,825) -18%
1,112,352 1% 1,847,515 2% (735,163) -40%
4,220,500 4% _ 2,973,582 3% 1,246,918 42%
$98.923,887 100% $85,292,231 100%  $13.631.656 16%

Compared to the prior fiscal year, total General Fund revenues increased by $13.6 million or 16 percent in
fiscal year 2002. Property taxes accounted for the bulk of the increase. The $6.0 million or 33 percent

increase in property tax re

venue was due to new construction and increases in taxable values.

On October 1, 2001, the State of Florida instituted a communications services tax (included in the above
schedule in “Other taxes”). This tax replaced the franchise fees on cable television and communication

service companies, which
explains the decrease in
that revenue category. It
also replaced the public
service tax on the above-
mentioned companies.

FY 2002 General Fund Revenues

Investment
income
Fines and 1%
forfeitures
1%

Other revenues
4%

Property taxes
25%

Charges
for services

Franchise fees
8%

"~ Other taxes

15%

Intergovernmental _—"

10% .
Licenses

and permits
9%

Special
assessments
7%
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Expenditures in the General Fund are shown in the following schedule:

Percent Increase Percentage

2002 Percent of 2001 of (Decrease) of Increase
Expenditures: Amount Total Amount Total From 2001 (Decrease)
General government services ~ $18,577,568 20% $15,175,095 18%  $3,402,473 22%
Public safety 52,125,314 57% 49,223,841 58% 2,901,473 6%
Physical environment 3,185,017 3% 2,870,259 3% 314,758 11%
Transportation - 0% 189,310 0% (189,310) -100%
Economic environment 740,292 1% 913,074 1% (172,782) -19%
Human services 4,470,460 5% 4,563,378 6% (92,918) 2%
Culture/Recreation 12,906,673 14% 11,869,329 14% 1,037,344 9%
Total $92.005,324 100% $84.804.286 100% $7.201,038 _8%

In fiscal year 2002, total General Fund expenditures increased by $7.2 million or 8 percent compared to the
prior year. The bulk of the increase was due to union negotiated cost-of-living wage increases of 2 percent
on October 1, 2001, and 2 percent on April 1, 2002. The rising cost of health insurance was another factor
for the overall increase in expenses.

The increase in General government services was affected by the remodeling and operation of the Howard C.
Forman Human Services Campus, which commenced late in fiscal year 2001. During the 2002 fiscal year,
expenditures (for a full year) amounted to $1.0 million more than the prior year. Other increases affecting
this category related to changes in the allocation of insurance cost.

FY2002 General Fund Expenditures

Human services Culture/Recreation

5% 14% General government
° .
services

20%

Economic
environment
10/0

_\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
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Proprietary funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year for the Utility Fund amounted to $27,837,878. Other factors
concerning the finances of this major fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the past year, the budget was modified several times. At the end of the third quarter the City
Commission approved a revised budget principally to:

e appropriate for a grant to Broward County Community College which was approved by Commission
in 2000-01;

e adjust the carryover of funds by the amounts spent in the previous fiscal year; and
e establish a budget for the new Early Learning Center that will be opening at the Central Campus.

Subsequently, the budget was amended to increase the Emergency Home Energy Assistance Program —
(EHEAP) and include the Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) and Respite for
Elders Living in Everyday Families (RELIEF) grants.

Even though these adjustments increased the budget by $0.6 million, actual charges were $12.3 million (11.8
percent) below the final budget due to savings in:

e personnel services of $4.8 million ($2.4 million in salaries and social security matching for
vacancies and partially filled positions during the fiscal year; $1.4 million in health insurance claims;
and $0.6 million in contributions to the general employees pension plan);

e operating expenses of $5.3 million (entire contingency budget of $1.5 million, $0.6 million in
contractual services and $0.6 million in rentals resulting from a decrease in debt service allocation to
the Early Learning Center); and

e capital expenditures of $1.8 million of which $0.9 million was encumbered and as such would be
paid for with funds from next fiscal year.

Resources available for appropriation were $1.4 million (1.4 percent) below the final budgeted amount due
mainly to:
o the state of the economy and the impact of September 11th. In this regard, sales tax under performed
by $0.3 million and interest/investment income was lower than anticipated by $0.7 million.

e over estimated building permits revenues by $0.9 million.

e a reduction in the number of classrooms resulting in a $0.5 million loss in Early Learning Center
fees.

These shortfalls were partially offset by $1.7 million increase in Communications Services Tax revenue.

-13-
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2002, amount to $413 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, buildings,
improvements other than buildings, and machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City's capital
assets for the current fiscal year was 10 percent.

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities 2002
Land $48,334,581 $3,000,562  $51,341,143
Buildings 68,125,895 4,688,133 72,814,028
Improvements other than buildings 31,982,438 110,154,090 142,136,528
Machinery and equipment 13,851,154 831,265 14,682,419
Infrastructure 6,754,200 - 6,754,200
Construction in progress 90,588,171 35,131,281 125,719,452

$259.636.439  $153.811,331 $413.447.770

The net addition to capital assets before depreciation for governmental activities equaled $41 million and
included the following items:

e Built the Central Campus which includes an additional Charter Elementary School [600 students]; a
Middle School [600]; and a Preschool [250] located at Sheridan Street and Flamingo Road.

e A joint-use facility building at the Academic Village to be shared with Florida International
University is under construction.

e Constructed a 400 MHz Emergency Radio Dispatch Center.

e Built a recreation storage park on Pembroke Road providing 502 boat and trailer spaces.

e Acquired 8.5 acres of land using Florida Commission Trust Funds for expansion of the Wetlands
Bank.

e Purchased land through the County’s land preservation bond program to provide for the
construction of additional wetlands and park facilities.

e Installed lightning prediction systems at eight sports facilities.

e Constructed a vehicle maintenance facility for fire and rescue vehicles.

Of the $8.6 million increase in capital assets before depreciation for business-type activities, the majority
was completion of construction-in-progress projects including:

e Continued rehabilitation of the sewer treatment plant.
e Upgrading the odor control system.

e  Water and sewer lines and lift stations dedicated by developers.

-14-
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Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3d. starting on page 45 of this report.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $149.4
million. All of the City's outstanding debt is secured by specified revenue sources.

Governmental
Activities
2002 2001
Revenue Bonds $149,425,000 $ 81,780,000
Loans - 19,016,628

$149.425,000 $100.796.628

During the current fiscal year, the City's net outstanding debt increased by 48.2 percent. The key
factors in this increase were the following:

On October 12, 2001 the City issued $19.6 million of revenue bonds payable from a pledge on the
electric public service tax revenues. It financed various City projects including a police annex, fire
and rescue system improvements, park improvements, and the payoff of the $10.0 million Capital
Improvement Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2000.

On December 11, 2001, the City issued $31.91 million of revenue bonds payable from a pledge on
the rental payments received from the City’s Charter Schools and Early Learning Centers. It
financed the construction and equipping of a Central Campus comprising of an Early Learning
Center, a Charter Elementary School, and a Charter Middle School, as well as enabling the payoff
of the remaining $9,016,628 principal and $411,168 accrued interest of the Certificate of
Indebtedness, Series 1997.

On April 4, 2002, the City issued $20.06 million of revenue bonds payable from a pledge on the
rental payments received by the City’s Charter Schools. It financed the purchase of 30 new school
buses, and provided funds for the construction of an 88,000 square foot shared educational facility
with a capacity of 400 high school students to be located on the City’s existing Academic Village
which includes a Charter High School campus.

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 starting on page 49 of this report.

Economic Factor and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The City's local economy is primarily based upon retail and service activities. The occupancy rate of the
City's retail establishments and office structures is 94 percent. Only 5 percent of the City remains
undeveloped. Build out is expected by the year 2007.
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The successes from our current fiscal year will provide an excellent springboard for some of next year’s
programs. Here are some examples of those successes:

Negotiated an agreement with Florida International University for construction of a joint-use facility
building at the Academic Village.

An internal audit of the address database used by the State to allocate the Communications Services
Tax revealed that 200 City blocks were inaccurately identified by the State as being outside the
boundaries of the City. The correction of this error will generate approximately $100,000 per year in
additional revenue.

An internal audit of occupational licenses revealed 900 business addresses without a valid license.
The City is in the process of determining whether or not these businesses are still in operation.

An outside audit of the Property Appraiser’s tax roll identified 309 property folios that the County
had miscoded to other cities. The effect of this finding will result in approximately $62,000 of
additional annual revenue.

Facilitated the viewing of utility bills on the Internet.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund increased to $15.2 million. It is
approximately equal to two months of the General Fund expenditures. Over the last several years, the City
has been able to increase its unreserved fund balance as shown in the following graph. A portion of
unreserved fund balance will be used to preclude or moderate future tax and user fee increases.

General Fund Unreserved Fund Balance
for the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 1996 -2002

$15,205.451

16,000,000
14,000,000+
12,000,000+
10,000,000+
8,000,000+
6,000,000+
4,000,000+
2,000,000 p) W= e 4 o] k] ] L \

$9,177,918

$5,233,151

$3,314,468

199

In 1995, the State of Florida limited all local governments' ability to increase property taxable values in any
given year to 3 percent or cost of living, whichever is lower. With the exception of the current year, the
following graph indicates that property tax rates have been reduced or have remained steady over the last ten
years. For many years, the City, just like many cities across the country, has had to face the challenge of
keeping taxes and service charges as low as possible while providing residents with the level of service they
have come to expect.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Millage Rate History
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92-93 93-94 94-95 95-96 96-97 97-98 98-99 99-00 00-01 01-02

Years

On May 1, 2002, the water and sewer rates were increased by 3.3 percent (based on the change in the
consumer price index) in accordance with Ordinance 796, adopted on June 25, 1986. In addition, the rates
will be increased on October 1, 2002 by 1.6 percent (based on the change in the consumer price index) in
accordance with Ordinance 1414, adopted on June 19, 2002. The rates will be increased again on January 1,
2003 by 15.5 percent to make up the waived consumer price increases from October 1, 1994 to October 1,
1999.

All these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for fiscal year 2002.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Pembroke Pines' finances for
all those with an interest in the City's finances.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to Rene Gonzalez, Finance Director, Finance Department, City of
Pembroke Pines, 10100 Pines Boulevard, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33026.

-17-
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2002
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $12,617,303 $41,671 $12,658,974
Investments 24,367,613 6,347,066 30,714,679
Receivables 9,919,887 2,766,629 12,686,516
Inventories 78,926 - 78,926
Restricted assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents 34,918,998 21,993,221 56,912,219

Investments - 32,968,269 32,968,269
Prepaid costs 25,125 - 25,125
Unamortized bond issue costs 2,715,983 - 2,715,983
Capital assets, net 259,636,439 153,811,331 413,447,770
Total assets 344,280,274 217,928,187 562,208,461
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,440,525 213,326 10,653,851
Deposits 1,705,114 - 1,705,114
Deferred revenue 5,247,103 91,259 5,338,362
Internal balances 19,907,251 (19,907,251) -
Payable from restricted assets:

Deposits - 2,928,009 2,928,009
Due to police & fire pension fund 133,484 - 133,484
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 12,420,824 539,685 12,960,509

Due in more than one year 151,308,767 456,440 151,765,207
Total liabilities 201,163,068  (15,678,532) 185,484,536
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 116,772,277 153,811,331 270,583,608
Restricted for:

$2 Police Education 115,422 - 115,422

ADA /Paratransit Program 82,696 - 82,696

Charter schools 4,038,644 - 4,038,644

Community Bus Program 96,396 - 96,396

Debt Service 9,196,231 - 9,196,231

FDLE - Confiscated 1,586,744 - 1,586,744

Justice - Confiscated 411,170 - 411,170

Older Americans Act 319418 - 319418

Road & Bridge Fund 2,407,113 - 2,407,113

Treasury - Confiscated 89,440 - 89,440

Wetland Mitigation Trust 569,796 - 569,796

Expansion - 51,957,510 51,957,510
Unrestricted 7,431,859 27,837,878 35,269,737
Total net assets $143,117206  $233,606,719  $376,723,925

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Special Assessments
Franchise fees and taxes
Other
Inventories
Prepaid costs
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Restricted Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Interfund payables
Compensated absences
Deposits
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for:
Subsequent years' expenditures
Prepaid costs
Encumbrances
Debt service
Disaster assistance

Unreserved, reported in:

General fund

Special revenue funds:

Designated
Undesignated
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Unamortized bond issue costs are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds.

Interest payable, included in accrued liabilities, is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

September 30, 2002
Other Total
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
General Service Projects Funds Funds
$ 2,980,844 $ - - % 9,634436 $ 12,615,280
21,565,456 - - - 21,565,456
- - 756,548 132,156 888,704
4,985,245 - - 417,026 5,402,271
340,700 - 580 238,660 579,940
78,926 - - - 78,926
- - - 25,125 25,125
4,942,549 512,802 - - 5,455,351
51,317 - 2,005,066 992,589 3,048,972
5,000 11,238,165 23,106,037 569,796 34,918,998
$ 34950,037 $ 11,750,967 25,868,231 $§ 12,009,788 $ 84,579,023
5,201,669 18,844 831,234 37,048 6,088,795
31,115 - - 150,429 181,544
- - 1,276,811 - 1,276,811
133,484 - 5,710,118 233,928 6,077,530
750,000 - 1,909,283 - 2,659,283
7,220,258 - - 192,144 7,412,402
1,428,532 - - 276,582 1,705,114
3,276,070 - 755,135 1,215,898 5,247,103
- - 16,759,273 - 16,759,273
18,041,128 18,844 27,241,854 2,106,029 47,407,855
- - - 579,402 579,402
- - - 25,125 25,125
1,578,458 - 4,819,169 393,678 6,791,305
- 11,732,123 - - 11,732,123
125,000 - - - 125,000
15,205,451 - - - 15,205,451
- - - 4,170,280 4,170,280
- - - 4,735,274 4,735,274
- - (6,192,792) - (6,192,792)
16,908,909 11,732,123 (1,373,623) 9,903,759 37,171,168
$ 34950,037 $ 11,750,967 25,868,231 $ 12,009,788
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 259,634,563
2,715,983
(2,535,892)

is not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Revenues
Taxes:
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Communications services tax
Other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment Income
Contribution
Rental revenue
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Other debt service costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Revenue bonds issued
Discount on revenue bonds
Current refunding of Certificates of Indebtedness
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Other Total
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
General Service Projects Funds Funds
$ 24235301 $ - % 995,000 $ - $ 25,230,301
7,550,181 721,833 - - 8,272,014
6,372,105 2,158,398 - - 8,530,503
7,094,762 - - 7,094,762
1,233,840 - - 2,598,698 3,832,538
7,389,152 - 976,392 99,472 8,465,016
9,141,666 - - - 9,141,666
9,758,986 - 3,480,619 19,720,483 32,960,088
19,964,434 - - 521,401 20,485,835
850,608 - - 429,848 1,280,456
1,112,352 207,317 680,151 207,278 2,207,098
- - 11,430 1,175,381 1,186,811
4,035,520 3,456,284 - 98,086 7,589,890
184,980 - - 10,302 195,282
98,923,887 6,543,832 6,143,592 24,860,949 136,472,260
18,577,568 - 11,140 1,460 18,590,168
52,125,314 - 4,488,580 789,031 57,402,925
3,185,017 - - - 3,185,017
- - 85,002 4,020,966 4,105,968
740,292 - - 1,563,960 2,304,252
4,470,460 - 29,411,116 17,159,476 51,041,052
12,906,673 - 3,767,549 - 16,674,222
- 3,925,000 400,353 - 4,325,353
- 5,360,537 - - 5,360,537
- 1,477,904 - - 1,477,904
92,005,324 10,763,441 38,163,740 23,534,893 164,467,398
6,918,563 (4,219,609)  (32,020,148) 1,326,056 (27,995,138)
- - - 1,576,893 1,576,893
(323,358) - - (1,253,535) (1,576,893)
- 23,625,824 47,944,176 - 71,570,000
- - (363,592) - (363,592)
- (19,792,421) - - (19,792,421)
(323,358) 3,833,403 47,580,584 323,358 51,413,987
6,595,205 (386,206) 15,560,436 1,649,414 23,418,849
10,313,704 12,118,329 (16,934,059) 8,254,345 13,752,319
$ 16908909 $ 11,732,123 $ (1,373,623) $ 9,903,759 $ 37,171,168

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
(Page 19) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 21) $ 23,418,849
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 39,738,573
Depreciation expense (excluding depreciation on internal service fund) (8,543,226)
Net adjustment 31,195,347

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins and donations) 1,600,310

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. revenue bonds) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

The details of the difference are as follows:
Debt issued:

2001 Series Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (19,840,174)
2001A Series Charter School Revenue Bonds (31,724,270)
2001B Series Charter School Revenue Bonds (19,641,964)

(71,206,408)
Principal payments:

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds 3,305,000

Bank Loans 19,016,628

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 620,000

22,941,628

Bond Issue Costs, Bond Discount/Premium & Bond Refunding 1,199,535
Net adjustment (47,065,245)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in government funds:

The details of the difference are as follows:

Compensated absences (532,588)
Accrued interest (307,627)
Change in net assets of governmental activities (Page 19) $ 8,309,046

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2002
Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Utility Fund Public Insurance
Assets
Current:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 41,671 $ 2,023
Investments 6,347,066 2,802,157
Accounts receivable:
Customer accounts, net 2,292,901 -
Special Assessments 404,656 -
Other 69,072 -
Due from other funds 488,695 -
Interfund receivables 2,659,283 -
Total current assets 12,303,344 2,804,180
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 21,993,221 -
Investments 32,968,269 -
Total restricted assets 54,961,490 -
Advances to other funds 16,759,273 -
Capital assets:
Land 3,006,562 -
Buildings and utility plant 146,740,691 -
Construction-in-progress 35,131,281 -
Machinery and equipment 4,534,531 13,294
Less accumulated depreciation (35,601,734) (11,418)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 153,811,331 1,876
Total noncurrent assets 225,532,094 1,876
Total assets $ 237835438 % 2,806,056

(Continued)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
(Continued)
September 30, 2002
Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Utility Fund Public Insurance
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 44086 $ 357,483
Retainage payable 169,240 -
Claims payable - 2,438,777
Total current liabilities 213,326 2,796,260

Noncurrent liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 2,928,009 -

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 996,125 9,796
Deferred revenue 91,259 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,087,384 9,796
Total liabilities 4,228,719 2,806,056
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 153,811,331 1,876
Restricted for expansion 51,957,510 -
Unrestricted 27,837,878 (1,876)
Total net assets 233,606,719 -
Total liabilities and net assets $ 237835438 $ 2,806,056

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Utility Fund Public Insurance
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 22,578,177  $ 11,595,803
Special assessments 308,206 -
Other 77,648 -
Total operating revenues 22,964,031 11,595,803
Operating expenses:
Operating, administrative and maintenance 25,464,934 12,773,212
Depreciation 4,081,238 906
Total operating expenses 29,546,172 12,774,118
Operating loss (6,582,141) (1,178,315)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income 4,029,199 309,415
Other income 24,064 868,900
Total nonoperating revenues 4,053,263 1,178,315
Loss before contributions (2,528,878) -
Capital contributions 11,743,301 -
Change in net assets 9,214,423 -
Net assets, beginning 224,392,296 -
Net assets, ending $ 233.606,719 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Fund  Internal Service Fund
Utility Fund Public Insurance
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers:
For services $ 22,350,126 $ 11,596,066
For deposits 430,305 -
Cash payments to suppliers for goods
and services (8,635,811) (13,147,284)
Cash payments to employees for services (5,873,419) (94,456)
Quasi-external operating payments (10,664,195) -
Other operating revenues 1,048,215 -
Net cash used by operating activities (1,344,779) (1,645,674)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Decrease in due from other funds 6,686 -
Interest earned from other funds 400,353 -
Operating grants received 7,187 -
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 414,226 -
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,292,308) -
Other 23,554 868,900
Proceeds from sale of equipment 556 -
Capital contributions provided by developers 6,440,870 -
Increase in advances to other funds (65,823) -
Net cash provided by capital and
related financing activities 3,106,849 868,900
(Continued)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
(Continued)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of

investment securities
Interest and dividends on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in equity in pooled
cash and cash equivalents

Pooled cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Pooled cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service Fund

Utility Fund

Public Insurance

Reconciliation of operating loss to
net cash used by operating activities

Operating loss $

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables:
Decrease in customer accounts, net
Decrease in other, net
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in customer deposits

Net cash used by operating activities $

(7,084,897) -
2,979,007 336,895
3,628,846 309,415

(477,044) 646,310
1,699,252 (130,464)

20,335,640 132,487

22.034.892 $ 2.023

(6,582,141) $ (1,178,315)

4,081,238 906
6,165 263
662,362 -
150,220 (405,686)
(234,217) -
141,289 (62,842)
430,305 -
(1.344779) $ (1.645.674)

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Property contributed by developers $

5,302,431 $

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Assets

Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from other funds
Receivables:
Accrued interest and dividends
Other

Total assets

Liabilities

DROP participants payable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes

See notes to basic financial statements.

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2002

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
$ - 3,087,395
126,126,175 -
133,484 -
488,226 -
7,763 894,397
126,755,648 3,981,792
1,964,467 -
37,903 950,029
- 3,031,763
2,002,370 3,981,792
$ 124,753,278 -
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Additions
Contributions:
Plan members
Employer
State/County
Total contributions

Investment earnings (loss):
Investment loss
Less investment expenses

Net investment loss
Gain from demutualization

Total additions

Deductions
Pension benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets- beginning

Net assets- ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

229

Pension
Trust
Funds

$ 4,446,309
7,247,920
1,233,840

12,928,069

(1,337,871)
385,456

(1,723,327)
2,320,963
13,525,705

4,661,513
61,813
202,597

4,925,923

8,599,782

116,153,496

$ 124753278






NOTE 1.

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Pembroke Pines (the City) was incorporated in 1960. The City operates under a
Commission-Manager form of government. In addition to police services, general government,
recreation, and public works services provided to its residents, the City operates water and sewer
utilities and maintains various trust and agency funds in a fiduciary capacity. The City also provides,
to its residents, educational facilities through Charter Schools, in addition to those facilities provided
by the School Board of Broward County.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002, the City implemented the new financial reporting requirements of GASB
Statement No. 34, As a result, an entirely new financial presentation format has been implemented.
The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the City of Pembroke Pines as the primary
government with no component units. In determining the financial reporting entity, the City
complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No.14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," and
would have included all component units had one of the following conditions existed:

1. City appointment of a voting majority of the units' board.
2. City can impose its will on the unit.
3. Financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above and whose governing body is the same, or substantially the same, as the City
Commission or the component unit provides services entirely to the City. Currently, the City has
no blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit
criteria described above, but do not meet the criteria for blending. Currently, the City has no
discretely presented component units.

b. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and the major enterprise fund are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

¢. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. —However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, franchise and communications taxes, licenses and interest associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

¢. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund, and is always classified as a major fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment
of interest and principal on the general long-term debt of the City other than debt service
payments made by enterprise funds. Pledged revenues are used for the debt service
payments of principal and interest.

The capital projects fund is used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes only one
Capital Project Fund and it is used to account for the acquisition and construction of capital
assets from bond proceeds.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The utility fund accounts for activities of providing water and wastewater services to the
public.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
The internal service fund accounts for general liability, workers’ compensation and health
and life insurance coverages, provided to other departments or agencies of the City on a
cost reimbursement basis.
The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial
capacity. The reporting entity includes two agency funds. Since agency funds are custodial

in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities), they do not involve the measurement of results of
operations. The agency funds are as follows:

Fund Brief Description

General Trust Fund Used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for other funds.

Sanitation Fund Used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for a private organization.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The pension trust funds account for the activities of the General Employees Pension Plan
(GEPP) and the City’s Pension Fund for the Firefighters and Police Officers (CPFFPO),
which accumulate resources for pension benefits.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and
other charges between the government’s water and sewer function and various other
functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s Utility and internal service fund are charges for
services. Operating expenses for utility fund and the internal service fund include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s “Pooled cash and cash equivalents” are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and deposits held with the State Board of Administration (SBA) Investment Pool.
For the purpose of the proprietary fund’s Statement of Cash Flows, “Pooled cash and cash
equivalents” include all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

All investments of the City, except the SBA Investment Pool, are reported at fair value,
which is based on quoted market price. The SBA Investment Pool is recorded at its value
of the pool shares (2A-7 Pool), which is fair value. Additional deposits and investment
disclosures are presented in Note 3a.

2. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/
payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds”
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between
funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

3. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible receivables are based upon historical
trends and the periodic aging of receivables. Major receivable balances for the
governmental activities include franchise fees and utility taxes, and amounts due from
other governments. Business-type activities report utility billings and special assessments
as their major receivables.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date
of donation.

All infrastructure assets acquired after July 1, 1980 are reported in the government-wide

financial statements at estimated historical cost provided by the City’s engineering
division.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase for capital assets of business-
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Useful Lives (Years)
Assets Estimated
Buildings 20-50
Improvements other than buildings 5-50
Machinery and Equipment 3-10
Infrastructure 10-50

5. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of governmental funds, which consist of expendable supplies, held for
consumption are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased,
(consumption method). The inventories of supplies, diesel fuel and gasoline are recorded
at cost using the moving average method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

6. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investments of the governmental and enterprise funds
that are legally restricted as to their use. The primary restricted assets of the
governmental funds are related to amounts that the City is required to segregate in
connection with the issuance of Revenue Bonds, including sinking fund and reserve
requirements, as well as amounts segregated for construction projects. The primary
restricted assets of the enterprise fund are related to water and sewer connection fees and
utility deposits. See Note 3.c. for more details on the restricted assets.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
7. Compensated Absences

The City's policy regarding vacation time is to encourage employees to use it within one
year of having earned the leave. With regard to sick leave, employees are paid each
September for the hours that they have accumulated in excess of 480 for General
Employees. Police Officers are compensated for the excess of 480 hours in September of
each fiscal year, or have the option to continue accumulating up to 720 hours.
Firefighters working shifts are paid for accumulated hours in excess of 576. Upon
separation from service, employees receive full payment for unused vacation and sick
leave.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the
government-wide financial statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based
on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the
compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources,
while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Property Taxes

Under State law, municipalities are able to levy up to 10 mills ($1 per $1,000 of taxable
value) for operating purposes. In addition, they are permitted to levy additional millage
for general obligation debt service purposes, provided a referendum to that effect is
approved by the voters. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
January 1. Taxes are levied annually on November 1 and are due by March 31.
Uncollected Ad Valorem taxes as of May 31 are sold as Tax Certificates to investors.
The Broward County Revenue Collector bills and collects the property taxes and remits
to the City its portion. Due to the immaterial amount of any additional property taxes
receivable after the 60-day period, no additional accrual is made in the government-wide
financial statements, or in the fund financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 2.

d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

10. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation, or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local
laws and contractual regulations. The City has no material violations of finance-related legal and
contractual obligations.

a. Fund Accounting Requirements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related requirements, bond covenants, and segregation for management purposes.

b. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budget Process

1. Prior to February 15, departmental access to the proposed budget module is enabled
to initiate the capture of data for the ensuing fiscal period. The budget module has
the following tools available to facilitate the budget process:

oo

Defined object codes required by the State Uniform Accounting System.

An alphabetical listing of object codes for expenditure accounts.

A current personnel roster.

Computer prepared budget worksheets showing actual expenditures for the
prior and current year; the current working budget; and a status quo personnel
cost projection.

2. Each individual department prepares a proposed budget comprised of the following:

AT SR O A o

Goals

Objectives

Performance measures
Functions and major activities
Organizational chart

Staffing level

Budget summary

Budget highlights
Accomplishments during the prior year
Budget worksheets by line item
Supporting schedules
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

b. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

Budget Process (Continued)

3.

The information is reviewed by the Finance Department for accuracy and proper
form,

During the month of May, the City Manager, the Department Heads, and Finance,
review the proposed budget and make any necessary revisions.

No later than ninety days prior to the close of the current fiscal year, the City
Manager submits to the City Commission a budget estimate of the expenditures and
revenues of all City departments and divisions for the fiscal year commencing the
following October 1.

Two public hearings are conducted at the City Commission Chambers, to inform the
taxpayers and receive their comments. The adopted budget is integrated into the
accounting software system effective October 1. It establishes the legal authority to
incur expenditures up to the appropriated amount for each line item.

Section 30.30(F) of the Code of Ordinances requires a majority affirmative vote of
the quorum to adopt the budget, which prior to October 1, is legally enacted through
passage of an ordinance.

The adopted budget may be amended as follows:

a. The City Manager and Finance Director approve line item adjustments within a
department.

b. The City Commission approves budget adjustments that transfer monies from
fund to fund.

c. The City Commission may approve additional appropriations of revenues and
expenditures. If it is done, this requires the adoption of an amended budget
ordinance.

The final budget includes budget transfers and supplemental appropriations, which
have the effect of amending the original adopted budget.  Supplemental
appropriations of $29,999,753 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 consisted
primarily of bond proceeds accounted for in the Debt Service and Capital Project
funds.

Other Budget Information

1.

Section 6.06 of the City Charter provides that no officer, department, or agency may
legally expend or contract to expend amounts in excess of the amounts appropriated
for any department, within an individual fund. Therefore, the legal level of control is
at the department level.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
b. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)
Other Budget Information (Continued)

2. The following governmental funds have annual appropriated budgets:

a. General Fund
b. Debt Service Fund
c. Special Revenue Funds, which consist of the following:

Road & Bridge Fund

State Housing Initiative Program (SHIP)
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Law Enforcement Grant

ADA Paratransit Program

Police Community Service Grant

Cops More Grant

Cops Grant

Community Bus Program

Charter Schools

Older Americans Act

Confiscated Treasury

Confiscated Justice

$2 Police Assessment

FDLE (Florida Department of Law Enforcement)

d. Capital Projects Fund. The budget for this fund is adopted on a project length
basis.

The budgets of general governmental fund types are prepared on a modified accrual
basis of accounting. This means revenues must be both measurable and available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period.

Likewise, expenditures generally are recognized when an event or transaction is
expected to draw upon current spendable resources. For example, debt service
payments are budgeted in the year that they are paid, as opposed to the period to
which the interest costs relate. Similarly, capital outlays are budgeted when
expenditures are expected to occur.

3. The hierarchy for reporting and budgetary control is as follows:

a. Fund c. Division e. Object code
b. Function d. Project
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C.

Revenue Restrictions

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from federal, state, or
local requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

Gas Tax Roads, bridges, sidewalks, and streetlights
School Board of Broward Charter School Expenditures

County

Older Americans Act Grant Grant Program Expenditures

Community Development Grant Program Expenditures

Block Grant (CDBG)

State Housing Initiative Grant Program Expenditures

Program Grant (SHIP)

For the year ended September 30, 2002, the City complied, in all material respects, with these
revenue restrictions.

Deficit Fund Equity

As of September 30, 2002 the municipal construction fund had a deficit fund balance of
$1,373,623 as compared with $16,934,059 from the previous year. The decrease of
$15,560,436 is mainly as a result of new bond proceeds received and accounted for as other
financing sources in the municipal construction fund amounting to $47.6 million, which have
not been fully expended.

This 2002 deficit fund balance is attributable to expenditures for ongoing municipal park
construction projects. In 2000, the utility fund made advances to the municipal construction
fund in the amount of $20,906,029, to provide funding for these park projects. The utility
fund’s total advances to the municipal construction fund of $18,668,556 at September 30,
2002 are expected to be repaid in future years based upon ad valorem revenue dedicated for
municipal park construction. The City anticipates that the utility fund will be fully paid by
2010 based upon the current millage rate of 0.4041, which has been earmarked for this

purpose.

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

a. Deposits and Investments

The City pools substantially all cash, cash equivalents, and investments, except for accounts
that are maintained separately in accordance with legal restrictions.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

a. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of
Florida to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for
Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to
deposit with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateral. In the event of
a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be
responsible for covering any resulting losses. Accordingly, all amounts reported as
deposits are deemed as insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its
agent in the entity’s name.

Investments

In accordance with City Ordinance 1384, the City is authorized to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Treasury, its agencies, instrumentalities, the Local Government Surplus Funds
Trust Fund administered by the State Board of Administration (SBA), and the Florida
Municipal Investment Trust administered by the Florida League of Cities. The Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida
Administrative Code, which identifies the Rules of the State Board of Administration.
These rules provide guidance and establish the general operating procedures for the
administration of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Additionally, the
Office of the Auditor General performs the operational audit of the activities and
investments of the State Board of Administration.

The Florida Municipal Investment Trust (the Fund) was created under the laws of the State
of Florida to provide eligible units of local governments with an investment vehicle to pool
their surplus funds and to reinvest such funds in one or more investment portfolios under
the direction and daily supervision of an investment advisor. The Florida League of Cities
serves as the administrator, investment manager and secretary-treasurer of the Trust. The
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund and the Florida Municipal Investment Trust
are not registrants with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the
funds have adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund.

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity
at year-end. The three categories of risk are as follows:

Category 1 - Insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent in
the City’s name.

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter-
party’s trust department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter-

party, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s
name.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

a. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

At year-end, the City’s investments were classified as follows:

Types of Investment Category 1 Carrying Value
US government and agencies $ 30,034,537 $ 30,034,537
Commercial paper 11,955,530 11,955,530
Corporate bonds 36,158,404 36,158,404
Foreign bonds 300,000 300,000
Common stocks 29,598,865 29,598,865
Mortgage-backed securities 1,457,730 1,457,730
$109.505.066
Investments not subject to risk
categorization:
Investment pools 86,024,623
Mutual funds 52,833,842
Total investments $248.363,531
The following is a reconciliation of deposits and investments to the Statement of Net Assets
and Fiduciary Net Assets:
By Category:
Deposits $ 14,104,180
Investments 248,363,531
$262.467.711
Statement of Net Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 12,658,974
Investments 30,714,679
Restricted Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 56,912,219
Investments 32,968,269
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents, Agency Funds 3,087,395
Investments, Fiduciary Funds 126,126,175
$262.467.711
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
a. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Risks and Uncertainties

The City’s Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (the Plans) have investments in a
combination of stocks, bonds, government securities and other investment securities.
Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit
risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level of
uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in risks in the near term would materially affect balances and the
amounts reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and the Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Assets. The Plans, through their investment advisors, monitor their
investments and the risks associated therewith on a regular basis, which the City believes
minimizes these risks.

b. Receivables

Receivables and the related allowance for uncollectible accounts as of September 30, 2002
are as follows:

Receivables Governmental Business-type Total
Customer accounts $ - $2,361,855 $ 2,361,855
Special assessments 888,704 404,656 1,293,360
Franchise fees and taxes 5,402,271 - 5,402,271
Other 579,940 69,072 649,012
Due from other governments 3.048.972 - 3.048.972
Gross receivables 9,919,887 2,835,583 12,755,470
Less: Allowance for
uncollectible accounts - (68,954) (68,954)
Net total receivables $9.919.887 $2,766,629  $12,686.,516

-43-



- .V.VI

88708868 § $19SSE PIJILIISAI [BI0 ],
067’196 7S sanIAnIe adL)-ssaursng - $}9SSE PIILIISAI [BI0],
ETESoT IS SUOTIOQUUOD JOMIS JATB A
8L6°€00°E sysodop 1owoisn)
661°76L (s,D¥F) suonoauuo)) [enuapIsay juseamnbyg pauoddng Annn
866816 FE SANIAIIE [BJUIWIULIIAOL) - SJISSE PIJOLIISAI [BJO0 ],
000 puny [e1ouag -1150do(] MOIOSH - SI9SSE PAIOLISAI [RI0],
96L°69S spunj juoueultad- uoneSNIA PUB[IOA - SIOSSE PIOLISAI [BIO],
LEO'90T €T Spunj uondNIsSuUod - s193[o1g 1ede)) - s1asse paIdLNsAl [BI0],
So1°8ET 11 199°0c6'T § TI96VPST S 8V LY S 0FPE0orTT — § 880°L9S $ TE6'ISL $ TS®T6L $ STrveyc  § 0ITH0S S 1G9p O3 PAJR[a1 SJsSE PAIOLISAL [RIO],
oy eIrs 16S°0LY'1 000°s€1°C - Y6 6€1 - 1€6°1SL £66°8CS - £0¥'98 1sareyut pue fedroutid
Jo JuowAed JOJ punj oAIISY
EVL'STI'O $  0LO°09Y  $ T19vIY

Sz q100¢C V1002
SOLIOS SOLIOS
spuog spuog

ONUIAIY ONUIAIY
CIUEN CIUEN
ESiL) ESiL)

$ 8YEQLY $ 96€°001°1  $ 880°L9S $ - $ 86T°€9T $ scrver'c  $ LOS L1V $ 1sareyut pue fedroutid

Jo juowAed 10J punj Suryuig

+10] pPIay SjuaunsaAUf

T00T 6661 8661 S66T €661 €661 66T
SoLIog SoLIeg SoLIeg SoLIeg SoLIeg SoLIeg SoLIeg
spuog spuog spuog spuog spuog spuog spuog

onuoAy onuoAy onuoAy onuoAy onuoAy onuoAy onuoAy
JuowoAoxduy JuowoAoxduy juowoaoxrdwy  juowoaoxrdw]  juowosoxrdw]  juewosoxduy Surpunjoy
o1qng reade) o1qng reade) reade) o1qng JusweAordwy
a1qnd

ISMOJ[O] S& 2Tk 70T ‘0¢ Ioquadeg e
PaIoLISaI puk pajeSeISes sUNOWY "Spuog SNUIAIY JO 2OUBNSST oY) SUTUIOAOS SIOULUIPIO ) YIIM UOTIUUOD UT SJUNOWE UTLIID J01NSAI puk jeSaISes o) parmnbar st L)1) 9y,

SJISSY PIPLYSIY "D

(panunuo)) SANOAD INNODIV ANV SANNA TTV NO SALON A4 TIVLAA ‘€ ALON

(ponunuoD)
SIUSWIO)R)S [RIOUBUL] OIseg 0) SOJON

BpLIOL] ‘Sauld dYOIquidd Jo A)1D)



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

d. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2002 is as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

*Beginning balance has been restated to include
infrastructure assets per GASB 34.

Beginning Ending

Balance* Additions Deletions Balance
$ 44,665,114 % 3,766,085 $  (96,618) 48,334,581
60,784,317 29,804,449 (595) 90,588,171
105,449,431 33,570,534 (97,213) 138,922,752
81,228,879 20,347 - 81,249,226
38,554,438 2,169,605 - 40,724,043
34,070,400 5,908,948 (535,867) 39,443,481
31,336,568 - - 31,336,568
185,190,285 8,098,900 (535,867) 192,753,318
(11,513,640) (1,609,691) - (13,123,331)
(6,712,212) (2,029,393) - (8,741,605)
(22,070,135) (3,990,631) 468,439 (25,592,327)
(23,667,949) (914,419) - (24,582,368)
(63,963,936) (8,544,134) 468,439 (72,039,631)
121,226,349 (445,234) (67,428) 120,713,687
$ 226,675,780 $ 33,125,300 $ (164,641) $ 259,636,439
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

d. Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government services

Public safety

Physical environment

Transportation

Economic environment

Human services

Culture/recreation
Total depreciation expense - governmental
activities

Business-type activities:
Water-sewer combined service
Total depreciation expense - business-type
activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

$ 3,006,562 - - $ 3,006,562
32,049,317 3,081,964 - 35,131,281
35,055,879 3,081,964 - 38,137,843
6,851,879 - - 6,851,879
134,533,497 5,355,315 - 139,888,812
4,391,983 157,414 (14,866) 4,534,531
145,777,359 5,512,729 (14,866) 151,275,222
(2,025,379) (138,367) - (2,163,746)
(26,157,408) (3,577,314) - (29,734,722)
(3,352,575) (365,557) 14,866 (3,703,266)
(31,535,362) (4,081,238) 14,866 (35,601,734)
114,241,997 1,431,491 - 115,673,488
$ 149297876 $ 4,513,455 - $ 153,811,331

638,210

2,363,915

87,816

1,843,869

8,065

2,009,394

1,592,865

8,544,134

4,081,238

4,081,238

46-



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

e. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances and transfers as of September 30, 2002 is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund

General

General
General
General
General
General
Debt Service
Utility
Pension-Fire &
Police

Total

Community Development Block

Grant

Law Enforcement Grant

Cops More Grant

COPS Grants

Community Bus Program
Municipal Construction
Municipal Construction
Municipal Construction

General Fund

Interfund receivables/payables:

Receivable Fund

Utility
Utility
Total

Payable Fund

Municipal Construction

General

Advances to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund

*Utility
Total

Payable Fund

Municipal Construction

Amount
$ 102,309

2,729
36,324
40,750
51,816

4,708,621
512,802
488,695
133,484

$6.077.530

Amount

$ 1,909,283
750,000
$2.659.283

Amount

$16,759.,273
$16,759.273

Purpose

Provide temporary resources

Provide temporary resources
Provide temporary resources
Provide temporary resources
Provide temporary resources
Capital projects expenditures
Capital projects expenditures
Capital projects expenditures
Fund pension plan

Purpose

Capital projects expenditures
Short-term loan

Purpose

Capital projects expenditures

*This amount is not expected to be paid within one year from September 30, 2002.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
e. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers (Continued)

Interfund Transfers:

Transfer in:

Police Cops COPS Grants Charter
Community More High School Total Purpose
Services Grant
Grant
Transfer out:
General $ 14,391 $ 38,713 $127,291 $ - $ 180,395 Required
fund contribution for
grant match
General - - - 142,963 142,963 Net gain from
fund Charter Early
Learning Centers
Charter - - - 624,460 624,460 Supplement other
Elementary funds
School
Charter - - - 629,075 629,075 Supplement other
Middle funds
School
Total $ 14,391 $ 38,713 $127.,291 $1.396.498 $1.576.893

f. Operating Leases

The City leases to two private businesses, office space located on the site of the previous City
Hall. Also, the City leases 3,200 square feet at 7960 Johnson Street to Elan Lawn Service;
650 square feet to the Miramar-Pembroke Pines Regional Chamber of Commerce at the City
Hall Building; and 276 square feet to a podiatrist plus an additional space to a provider of
physical, occupational and speech therapies in the Senior Citizen Multipurpose Center. The
restaurant at the City’s Golf & Racquet Club is also leased out to an operator. The City’s
assets, which are leased as of September 30, 2002, consist of $72,700 in land and $212,077 in
buildings for a total of $284,777. The accumulated depreciation and the net book value of the
buildings as of September 30, 2002 is $73,771 and $211,006, respectively.

On March 15, 2001, the City subleased the 157-acre site of the former South Florida State
Hospital from the Florida Department of Children & Families for a 50-year period beginning
July 1, 2001 (See Note 4.c. “Commitments”). As of September 30, 2002 the City had sub-
subleased portions of the site, now known as the “Howard C. Forman Human Services
Campus”, to eight healthcare-related providers at various rentals and terms.

The City also leases small parcels of property to various telecommunications service providers
in order to construct, maintain and operate telecommunications facilities. The annual leases
vary from 5 to 15 years with rental charges ranging between $3,000 and $40,000 per year.
Annual rentals increase at rates from 3% to 5% per year. In addition to the annual rent, and
subject to prior approval, the City shall receive 50% of any amounts received from any third
party source for co-location regarding the construction or use of telecommunication towers.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
f. Operating Leases (Continued)

The approximate minimum future rentals to be received, excluding cost of living increases, or
expected lease renewals, on non-cancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2002 are:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2003 $1,708,344
2004 917,894
2005 811,719
2006 588,126
2007 454,320
Thereafter 1,467,200

Total minimum future rentals $5.947,603

g. Long-Term Debt

Revenue Bonds - The source of repayment of these bonds is the income derived from the
acquired or constructed assets or specific revenue sources. The outstanding revenue bonds
include the following:

Public Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 — On March 3, 1992, the
City issued $3,855,000 for the purpose of advance refunding the Public Improvement
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1985 which had been issued to refund prior debt issued
to finance the cost of acquisition of the Pembroke Lakes Golf and Racquet facility. These
bonds have an outstanding balance of $490,000 and are due in varying installments
through December 1, 2002. These bonds bear interest at rates from 3.7% to 5.8%, with
interest paid semi-annually on June 1st and December 1st. The principal and interest on
these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon (i) the City’s electric franchise fee
revenues and (ii) the net revenues of the Pembroke Lakes Golf and Racquet facility. The
bonds are also secured by a surety bond and any casualty insurance proceeds received with
respect to any damage. The bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2003 $490,000 $14.210 $504.,210

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 - On June 29, 1993, the City issued
$15,200,000 for the dual purpose of refunding the Public Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 1986 and to fund a portion of the 1993 project. The projects consisted of
improvements to the City’s Southwest Focal Point Senior Center, fire station, Walter C.
Young Resource Center, and various other capital improvements. These bonds have an
outstanding balance of $2,365,000, which is due on October 1, 2002, and was subsequently
paid on that date. These bonds bear interest at rates from 3.8% to 5%, with interest paid
semi-annually on April 1st and October 1st. The principal and interest on these bonds are
payable from a pledge of and lien upon the City’s electric public service tax revenues and
all deposits into the account credited under the resolution. The bonds are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (Continued)

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2003 $2,365,000 $59.125 $2.,424,125

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 - On November 17, 1993, the City
issued $7,780,000 for the purpose of funding the acquisition, construction and equipping
the Southwest Focal Point Senior Center. These bonds have an outstanding balance of
$6,730,000 and are due in varying installments through December 1, 2023 and bear interest
at rates from 3.10% to 5.375%, with interest paid semi-annually on June 1st and December
1st. The principal and interest on these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon
(i) net revenues of the Senior Center and (ii) the City’s electric franchise fee revenues
which have previously been pledged by the City to secure the Series 1992 Bonds. Those
bonds maturing on or prior to December 1, 2003 are not subject to redemption prior to
maturity. The bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2004 are subject to redemption at
the option of the City, on or after December 1, 2003, in such order of maturity as the City
selects, at the redemption prices set forth below, plus accrued interest to the redemption

date:
Redemption Dates Redemption Price

December 1, 2003 to November 30, 2004 102%

December 1, 2004 to November 30, 2005 101%

December 1, 2005 and thereafter 100%

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2003 $ 175,000 $ 348,457 $ 523,457
2004 180,000 340,357 520,357
2005 190,000 331,683 521,683
2006 200,000 322,295 522,295
2007 210,000 312,170 522,170
2008-2012 1,210,000 1,386,407 2,596,407
2013-2017 1,560,000 1,025,359 2,585,359
2018-2022 2,030,000 546,100 2,576,100
2023-2024 975,000 53,079 1,028,079

$6,730,000  $4.665.907  $11.395.,907
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 - On September 23, 1998, the City
issued $24,055,000 for the purpose of acquiring land for a Charter High School,
construction and equipping of a Charter Middle School, site development for the Academic
Village, a communication system for the Fire Department and improvements to the City’s
fire stations and police annex. The Academic Village is the site for the Charter High
School, a county regional library, and a branch of Broward Community College. These
bonds have an outstanding balance of $24,055,000 and are due in varying installments
through October 1, 2022, and bear interest at rates which range from 3.90% to 5.0%, with
interest paid semi-annually on April 1st and October 1st. The principal and interest on
these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon the City’s electric public service
tax revenues and rentals from the Charter Middle School and the Charter High School.
Those bonds maturing on or prior to October 1, 2008 are not subject to redemption prior to
maturity. The bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2009 are subject to redemption at the
option of the City, on or after October 1, 2008, in such order of maturity as the City selects,
plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2003 $ - $1,134,175 $1,134,175
2004 770,000 1,119,160 1,889,160
2005 805,000 1,088,045 1,893,045
2006 835,000 1,055,245 1,890,245
2007 870,000 1,020,710 1,890,710
2008-2012 4,920,000 4,501,362 9,421,362
2013-2017 6,175,000 3,216,420 9,391,420
2018-2022 7,865,000 1,474,875 9,339,875
2023 1,815,000 45.375 1,860,375

$24,055,000 $14.655.367  $38.710.367

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 — On April 27, 1999, the City issued
$45,240,000 for the purpose of providing funds to finance the construction and equipping
of the Charter High School and certain other City projects. In addition, the City used
$10,985,000 of these bonds to refund the City’s outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1995. These bonds have an outstanding balance of $44,215,000 and are due
in varying installments through December 1, 2026 and bear interest at rates from 3.10% to
5.25%, with interest paid semi-annually on June 1st and December 1st. The principal and
interest on these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon the City’s electric
franchise fee revenues, and rentals from the City’s Charter Schools, Early Learning
Centers, and senior housing facility. These bonds were issued on parity with both of the
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 and Series 1993. Those bonds maturing
on or prior to December 1, 2008 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The bonds
maturing on or after December 1, 2009 are subject to redemption at the option of the City,
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 (Continued)

on or after December 1, 2008, in such order of maturity as the City selects, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2003 $ 470,000 $2,117,727 $ 2,587,727
2004 1,005,000 2,090,926 3,095,926
2005 1,045,000 2,053,253 3,098,253
2006 1,080,000 2,013,400 3,093,400
2007 1,125,000 1,970,942 3,095,942
2008-2012 6,380,000 9,107,252 15,487,252
2013-2017 8,000,000 7,498,874 15,498,874
2018-2022 10,240,000 5,279,246 15,519,246
2023-2027 14,870,000 2,111,025 16,981,025

$44.215,000 $34.242.645  $78.457.645

Capital Improvement Certificate of Indebtedness 1997 - On December 19, 1997, the
City issued $10,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds for community center projects.
It bore interest at 4.63% with principal and interest due annually on December 15th. This
loan was collateralized by pledged public service tax revenues. On December 11, 2001, the
outstanding principal balance of $9,016,628 plus $411,168 interest was paid off from the
proceeds of the $31,910,000 Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A.

Capital Improvement Certificate of Indebtedness 2000 — On December 28, 2000, the
City issued $10,000,000 to fund the construction of various projects throughout the City.
It bore interest at 4.622% with principal and interest due annually on January 15th. This
loan was collateralized by the pledged Half-Cent Sales Tax revenues. On October 12,
2001, the outstanding principal balance of $10,000,000 plus $364,624 interest was paid
off from the proceeds of the $19,600,000 Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
2001.

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 — On October 12, 2001, the City
issued $19,600,000 for the purpose of providing funds for various City projects including a
police annex, fire and rescue system improvements, park improvements, and the payoff of
the $10,000,000 Capital Improvement Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2000 plus
$364,624 accrued interest. These bonds have an outstanding balance of $19,600,000 and
are due in varying installments through October 1, 2022 and bear interest at rates from
3.5% to 5.5%, with interest paid semi-annually on April 1st and October 1st. The principal
and interest on these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon the City’s electric
public service tax revenues. These bonds were issued on parity with both of the Public
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 and 1998. Those bonds maturing prior to
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 (Continued)
October 1, 2012 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on or
after October 1, 2012 are subject to redemption at the option of the City, on or after

October 1, 2011, in such order of maturity as the City selects, plus accrued interest to the
redemption date.

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2003 $ - $ 903,500 $ 903,500
2004 655,000 892,038 1,547,038
2005 670,000 868,850 1,538,850
2006 695,000 844,962 1,539,962
2007 720,000 820,200 1,540,200
2008-2012 4,030,000 3,663,440 7,693,440
2013-2017 4,955,000 2,683,360 7,638,360
2018-2022 6,395,000 1,211,200 7,606,200
2023 1,480,000 37.000 1,517,000

$19,600,000 $11.924.550 $31.524.550

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A — On December 11, 2001, the City issued
$31,910,000 for the purpose of providing funds for the construction and equipping of a
Central Campus comprising of an Early Learning Center, a Charter Elementary School, and
a Charter Middle School, as well as enabling the payoff of the remaining $9,016,628
principal and $411,168 accrued interest of the Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 1997.
These bonds have an outstanding balance of $31,910,000 and are due in varying
installments through July 1, 2031 and bear interest at rates from 2.7% to 5.375%, with
interest paid semi-annually on January 1st and July 1st. The principal and interest on these
bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon the rental payments to be received from
the City’s Charter Schools and Early Learning Centers. Those bonds maturing on and prior
to July 1, 2011 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on and
after July 1, 2012 are subject to redemption at the option of the City, on or after July 1,
2011, in such order of maturity as the City selects, plus accrued interest to the redemption
date.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A (Continued)

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:

2003 $ - $1,534,579 $ 1,534,579
2004 600,000 1,534,579 2,134,579
2005 615,000 1,518,379 2,133,379
2006 635,000 1,499,314 2,134,314
2007 655,000 1,477,724 2,132,724
2008-2012 3,680,000 6,984,918 10,664,918
2013-2017 4,620,000 6,040,887 10,660,887
2018-2022 5,950,000 4,710,500 10,660,500
2023-2027 7,595,000 3,066,000 10,661,000
2028-2031 7,560,000 968.000 8,528,000

$31.910,000 $29.334.880  $61.244.880

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B — On April 4, 2002, the City issued
$20,060,000 for the purpose of purchasing 30 new school buses, and for providing funds
for the construction of an 88,000 square foot shared educational facility with a capacity of
400 high school students to be located on the City’s existing Academic Village Charter
High School campus. These bonds have an outstanding balance of $20,060,000 and are
due in varying installments through July 1, 2031 and bear interest at rates from 3% to
5.25%, with interest paid semi-annually on January 1st and July lst. The principal and
interest on these bonds are payable from a pledge of and lien upon rental payments to be
received from the Charter Schools. The City entered into an Interlocal Agreement with
Florida International University (FIU) on March 13, 2002 allowing FIU specified usage of
the shared educational facility for 10 years, for increasing annual rentals starting at
$400,000 per year, payable to the Charter High School in quarterly advance payments
beginning January 1, 2003. Such rental payments are also pledged to pay the debt service
on this bond issue. The Series 2001B Bonds were issued on a parity with Charter School
Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 A. Those bonds maturing on and prior to July 1, 2012 are not
subject to redemption prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2013 are
subject to redemption at the option of the City, on or after July 1, 2012, in such order of
maturity as the City selects, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

-54-



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3. DET AILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B (Continued)

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008-2012
2013-2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2031

Advanced and Current Refunded Bonds — The following are bonds for which the City has
provided the necessary resources to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable
trust for the purpose of generating the required resources for all future debt service payments:

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1972 - The outstanding balance is $355,000.
These bonds were defeased by the Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1983 and subsequently these bonds were refunded by the Consolidated Utility Systems
Revenue Bonds, Series 1992. The escrow funds are held in a trust with assets sufficient
to pay scheduled debt service requirements to maturity. The Water and Sewer Refunding

Principal Interest Total
$ 175,000 $ 954,468 $1,129,468
515,000 949,217 1,464,217
530,000 933,768 1,463,768
555,000 916,277 1,471,277
570,000 896,298 1,466,298
3,225,000 4,108,415 7,333,415
2,625,000 3,431,037 6,056,037
3,340,000 2,713,563 6,053,563
4,255,000 1,791,312 6,046,312
4,270,000 574,875 4,844,875
$20.060.000 $17.269.230 $37,329,230

Bonds, Series 1983 were called on September 1, 1993,

Consolidated Utility Systems Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 - The outstanding balance is
$22,320,000. These bonds were defeased on July 3, 1997. The escrow funds are held in
a trust with assets sufficient to pay scheduled debt service requirements to maturity.

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 — A portion of the proceeds from the sale of
the Series 1999 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds provided funds to advance refund all of
the City’s outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995. These bonds were
defeased on April 27, 1999 and have an outstanding balance of $9,850,000. Escrow funds are
held in a trust with assets sufficient to pay scheduled debt service requirements to maturity.
The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $688,363. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the
refunded debt, which is shorter than the life of the new debt issued. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 28 years by $517,106 and

resulted in an economic gain (net present value benefit) of $397,089.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

g. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2002 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Bonds and loans payable:
Revenue bonds:

Public Improvement Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 1992

Public Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1993

Capital improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1993

Public Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998

Capital improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999

Public Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2001

Charter School Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001 A

Charter School Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001B

Total revenue bonds

Loans:
Certificate of Indebtedness 1997
Certificate of Indebtedness 2000
Total loans

Less deferred amounts:
For issuance discounts/premiums
On refunding
Total bonds and loans payable

Estimated self-insurance claims
Compensated absences
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 955,000 $ - $ (465,000) $ 490,000 $ 490,000
5,205,000 - (2,840,000) 2,365,000 2,365,000
6,895,000 - (165,000) 6,730,000 175,000
24,055,000 - - 24,055,000 -
44,670,000 - (455,000) 44,215,000 470,000
- 19,600,000 - 19,600,000 -
- 31,910,000 - 31,910,000 -
- 20,060,000 - 20,060,000 175,000
81,780,000 71,570,000 (3,925,000) 149,425,000 3,675,000
9,016,628 - (9,016,628) - -
10,000,000 - (10,000,000) -
19,016,628 - (19,016,628) - -
(96,568) (363,592) 11,365 (448,795) (23,817)
(381,247) - 127,082 (254,165) (127,082)
100,318,813 71,206,408 (22,803,181) 148,722,040 3,524,101
2,731,279 14,338,923 (14,631,425) 2,438,777 1,479,476
11,425,765 7,856,760 (6,713,751) 12,568,774 7,417,247
$114,475,857 $93,402,091 $(44,148,357)  $163,729,591 $ 12,420,824
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
h. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type activities:
Compensated absences ~ $ 854,837 $ 597,125 $ (455,837) $ 996,125 $ 539,685
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ 854,837 $ 597,125 $ (455,837) $ 996,125 $ 539,685

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general and other governmental
funds. Claims liability typically has been liquidated in the general and internal service funds.

NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION

a. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to and destruction

of assets, errors, and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.

The City

established a risk management fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for the uninsured
risks of loss. Under this program, the risk management fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $200,000 for each workers’ compensation claim, $150,000 per occurrence for
each general liability claim, and $25,000 for each occurrence of damage to City-owned
property. The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided
by the fund, and for all other risks of loss. There were no reductions in insurance coverage
from the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial coverage in any of the

past three fiscal years.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the risk management
fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims.
The estimated claims liability of $2,438,777 reported in the fund at September 30, 2002 is
based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, as amended by Statement No. 30,
which requires that claims liabilities, including IBNR (incurred but not reported claims), be
based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims, using past experience adjusted for

current trends, and any other factors that would modify past experience.

Claims liabilities include specific and incremental claim adjustment expenditures/expenses. In
addition, estimated recoveries on unsettled claims, such as salvage or subrogation, were
evaluated in terms of their estimated realizable value and deducted from the liability for
unpaid claims. Estimated recoveries on settled claims were deducted from the liability for

unpaid claims.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
a. Risk Management (Continued)

The changes in the fund’s claims liability amount during the past three years were as follows:

Beginning of  Claims and Changes Claims End of Year

Year Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
1999-2000 $4,592,867 $11,066,392 $(10,897,097)  $4,762,662
2000-2001 4,762,662 10,532,845 (12,564,228) 2,731,279
2001-2002 2,731,279 14,338,923 (14,631,425) 2,438,777

b. Contingent Liabilities

The City has two underground storage tanks for which they have completed remedial action.
The City believes that no further action is required on either site.

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
Federal and State grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. Although the outcome
of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is in the opinion of the City management and
counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City.

¢. Commitments

On September 28, 1990, the City entered a “Large User Wastewater Agreement” with the City
of Hollywood, Florida, (Hollywood). The agreement provides for the connection of the City’s
eastern sewage collection system to the City of Hollywood’s treatment and disposal facility.
The City is being charged based on average daily wastewater flow to cover operating and
maintenance expenses, non-operating expenses, capital expenditures, bond retirement, and
interest expense. The charges to operations of the utility fund under this agreement were
$4,409,632 during the year ended September 30, 2002. Currently, the City and Hollywood are
in litigation related to allegations of overcharges by Hollywood to the City, and to the City’s
opposition to Hollywood’s proposed expansion of its Regional Wastewater Plant.

In 1986, the City entered into a lease with the Broward County School Board and Walter C.
Young Resource Center for fifty (50) years at $1.00 per year. The City holds title to the
Resource Center. The City also entered into an Interlocal Agreement in 1989 with the
Broward County School Board to operate the Walter C. Young Resource Center. The City is
responsible for a prorated share of the operating costs based on its usage as defined in the
agreement. The Center includes a school for 6th, 7th and 8th graders.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

¢. Commitments (Continued)

On October 21, 1992, the City entered into an agreement with Florida Wetlandsbank (FW), a
Florida Joint Venture. The agreement provides that FW will market, construct, operate, and
maintain a Wetland Mitigation Bank for those wishing to undertake development of Wetlands
in the City and satisfy their off-site mitigation requirements. FW pays a $1,000 maintenance
fee per acre contracted to the Wetland Mitigation Trust Fund. In addition, FW pays a $7,000
license fee per acre for the first 75 acres, then $8,500 per acre to the municipal construction
fund. FW posts a performance bond and an irrevocable letter of credit or other security for all
construction in progress. Upon completion of the improvements, FW will maintain each
project for 5 years, at which time the City will assume maintenance of the project.

On March 15, 2001, the City entered into an Interlocal Agreement with The Florida
Department of Children & Families (DCF), which provides for the City to develop, operate
and maintain the 157-acre site of the former South Florida State Hospital. The site was
originally leased by DCF from the State of Florida on January 4, 1973. The agreement
specifies that the City will sublease the site from DCF for a 50-year period from July 1, 2001
to June 30, 2051 for a $300 annual administration fee, and is subject to other terms and
conditions relating to the City’s management of the site. The City has renamed the site as the
“Howard C. Forman Human Services Campus”, and is currently subleasing the site’s facilities
to various health care providers. The City is looking into establishing affordable senior
housing, geriatric care, educational facilities and other health care services at the site (See
Note 3.f. “Operating Leases” and Note 5 “Subsequent Events”).

The City has the following construction commitments as of September 30, 2002:

Balance
Original September 30,
Vendor Description Amount 2002
The Haskell Company  University Campus $14,942,896 $5,003,930
The Haskell Company  Police Substation 2,826,650 729,149
The Haskell Company Walnut Creek Park 2,065,951 1,813,591
Widell, Inc. Odor Control & Plant Rehab 4,231,800 2,235,973

d. Postretirement Health and Life Insurance Benefits

Ordinances 990, 1015, and 1024, adopted on April 15, 1992, November 4, 1992, and February
17, 1993, respectively, provide coverage of health and life insurance to employees and their
spouses, if hired before October 1, 1991, who have reached normal retirement age and
completed service as prescribed by the City Pension Plan which covers the employee. Coverage
for employees hired after October 1, 1991 was limited to employee (single) coverage only.
Primary insurance coverage is extended until the employee qualifies for Medicare benefits (at 65
years of age). At that time, Medicare becomes the primary coverage. The allocated premium
related to the retiree’s health care and life insurance benefits is recognized as an expenditure by
the City. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, those costs totaled $686,229. As of
September 30, 2002, there were 138 eligible retirees receiving this benefit.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
d. Postretirement Health and Life Insurance Benefits (Continued)

In addition, extended health insurance coverage is offered to terminated employees for a
period of 18 months, divorced or widowed spouses of current employees for a period of 36
months, and disabled employees meeting the requirements of Social Security for a period of
29 months. These extended benefits are offered in order to comply with COBRA’s
requirements. The cost of this extended insurance coverage is paid entirely by the covered
individual.

e. Municipal Employees Retirement Plans

The City is the sponsor of two single-employer Public Employee Retirement Systems (PERS)
that are administered by the City to provide pension benefits to its employees. The City
contributes to the General Employees Pension Plan (GEPP) and the City Pension Fund for
Firefighters and Police Officers (CPFFPO), which are both defined benefit pension plans.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting — The Plans’ policy is to prepare its financial statements on the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in
which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when
due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide contributions. Benefits
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value in the financial
statements based on the quoted market prices as reported by recognized security
exchanges. Securities that have no quoted market price are presented at estimated fair
value as provided by the custodial bank and investment counsel.

Plan Membership Information

At October 1, 2001, the date of the latest actuarial evaluation, the Plans’ membership
consisted of:
Firefighters
General and Police
Employees Officers

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 133 -
Terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not yet
receiving them 107 -

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not yet

receiving them - 73
Current employees:
Vested 251 207
Non-vested 253 209
Total 744 489
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
e. Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

General Employees Pension Plan

Plan Description

The General Employees Pension Plan of the City of Pembroke Pines was established by
Referendum in 1973 (collectively known as the “Referendum”) as restated October 1,
1989, as amended by Ordinance 992 dated April 15, 1992, Ordinance 1058 dated
December 15, 1993, Ordinance 1297 dated March 17, 1999, and Ordinance 1413 dated
June 19, 2002. The Plan, which is a single-employer plan, was established to provide
retirement benefits to general and utility employees of the City of Pembroke Pines. A
more detailed description of the Plan and its provisions appears in the Referendum
constituting the Plan and in the summary plan description. The Plan does not issue a
stand-alone financial report, but is included in the reporting entity of the City as a pension
trust fund.

Eligibility

All full time employees, as defined in the Referendum, are required to participate in the
Plan as a condition of continued employment.

Service Retirement Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive a monthly pension amount equal to
2.75% of average yearly earnings for the highest two years of continuous service
multiplied by years of service (not to exceed 29.09 years).

A participant may retire early after completing 5 years of continuous service and

attaining 50 years of age. Early retirement benefits are calculated in a manner similar to
those for normal retirement, but at an actuarially reduced amount.

Disability Benefits

If a participant becomes totally disabled before termination of employment and prior to
reaching normal retirement age, he or she is entitled to do one of the following:

Non-service-connected — Ten years of vesting service is required for a non-service-
related disability benefit to be payable. If vested, the benefit payment is based on the

accrued benefit on the date of disability.

Service-connected - Benefits will be the greater of (i) earned pension as of the date of
disability or (ii) 40% of the current monthly pay as of such date.

Benefit payments under the General Employees Pension Plan are paid directly out of
fund assets.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
e. Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

General Employees Pension Plan (Continued)

Other forms of benefits are available to Plan participants and are further discussed in the
Referendum.

Funding Policy

The City of Pembroke Pines is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount
that, when combined with participant’s contributions, will fully provide for all benefits as
they become payable. The funding policy can only be amended by authorization of the
City Commission.

Participants are required to contribute 8.5% of regular wages, while the City’s
contribution of $3,604,737 or 20.56% of annual covered payroll, is based on the actuarial
report using the entry age normal frozen initial liability method with the unfunded
liabilities being amortized over 20 years. Chapter 112, Part VII, Florida Statutes requires
amortization of unfunded liabilities over a period no longer than 30 years.

Investment and administrative expenses are paid out of plan assets that are replenished by
investments earnings and employee and City contributions in order to maintain the plan
actuarially sound.

Investments

As of September 30, 2002, the Plan held no single investment that exceeded 5% of plan
net assets. See Note 3 (Part a.) for risk categorization of investments.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 3,604,737
Interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual pension cost 3,604,737

Contributions made (3,604,737)

Increase in net pension obligation -
Net pension obligation, beginning of year -
Net pension obligation, end of year s -

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the October
1, 2001 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal-frozen initial liability actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included an 8.25% investment rate of return, net of
administrative expenses and projected salary increases of 8.5%, and includes an inflation
component of 3%.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
e. Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

General Employees Pension Plan (Continued)

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Contributed  Obligation
9/30/00 $2,800,921 100% $ -
9/30/01 3,361,081 100 -
9/30/02 3,604,737 100 -

DROP Plan

Effective March 17, 1999, the City created the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP)
under Ordinance 1297. This plan is a defined contribution plan created in accordance with
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. An active participant of the general
employees pension plan becomes eligible to participate in the DROP on the first day of the
month coincident with or next following the active participant’s normal retirement date.
Upon entry into the DROP, an amount equal to the participant’s monthly retirement benefit
is transferred to an account designated by the participant for investment. The maximum
period of DROP participation is five (5) years. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002, $425,502 was contributed to the DROP.

City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers

Plan Description

The City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers in the City of Pembroke Pines
(CPFFPO) was established and amended by the following Ordinances (collectively known
as the “Ordinances”):

Ordinance Ordinance
Number Dated Number Dated

557 February 19, 1981 1198  December 18, 1996
829 March 4, 1987 1249 January 7, 1998
967 September 19, 1991 1318  November 17, 1999
1014 November 4, 1992 1321 December 15, 1999
1067 February 16, 1994 1325 January 19, 2000
1091 September 8, 1994 1353 September 20, 2000
1131 September 6, 1995 1360  November 15, 2000

The Plan, which is a single-employer plan, was established to provide retirement benefits
to firefighters and police officers of the City of Pembroke Pines. A more detailed
description of the Plan and its provisions appears in the Ordinances constituting the Plan
and in the summary plan description. Publicly available financial statements of the Plan
can be obtained from the City of Pembroke Pines Finance Department.
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

e.

Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers (Continued)

Eligibility

All full time employees, as defined in the Ordinances, are required to participate in the
Plan as a condition of continued employment, provided that at the time of hiring the
employee is at least eighteen years of age and satisfactorily completes all required medical
examinations. The Fire Chief and the Police Chief may elect to become members.

Any police officer may retire and receive normal retirement benefits after the earliest of
completing 20 years of continuous service and attaining 50 years of age, or after
completing 10 years of continuous service and attaining 55 years of age, or completing 20
years of continuous service regardless of age, or upon attaining 55 years of age regardless
of time of service, if an eligible participant on February 19, 1981.

Any firefighter may retire and receive normal retirement benefits after the earliest of
completing 10 years of continuous service and attaining 50 years of age, or completing 20
years of continuous service regardless of age, or attaining 55 years of age regardless of time
of service, if an eligible participant on February 19, 1981.

Police officers may retire early upon completion of 20 years of continuous service,
regardless of age, or after completing 10 years of continuous service and attaining 50 years
of age. Currently, firefighters may not elect to retire early.

Service Retirement Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive a monthly pension amount equal to 3%
(or 4% for participants with over 20 years of service) of average monthly earnings for the
highest two years of continuous service multiplied by the number of years of continuous
service, subject in any event to a maximum of 80% of average monthly earnings.
However, members as of the effective date (October 1, 1980) shall receive at their normal
retirement date (age S5, regardless of years of service) the greater of the benefit provided
by the formula above or 50% of average monthly earnings.

Early retirement benefits are calculated in a manner similar to those for normal retirement,
except that continuous service and average monthly earnings shall be determined as of the
early retirement date.

Other forms of benefits are available to Plan participants and are further discussed in the
Ordinances.
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e.

Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers (Continued)

Disability Benefits

A participant who incurs a service-connected disability is entitled to a monthly benefit
equal to the greater of (a) 66-2/3% of monthly earnings on the date of disability or (b) the
accrued benefit. A participant who incurs a non-service-connected disability and who has
completed ten years of continuous service is entitled to a monthly benefit equal to the
greater of (a) 3 % of the average monthly earnings on the date of disability or (b) the
accrued benefit.

Death Benefits

The Plan provides for spouses and/or children of participants for both service connected
and non-service connected deaths.

Funding Policy

The City of Pembroke Pines is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount
that, when combined with participants’ contributions and contributions from the State of
Florida, will fully provide for all benefits as they become payable. The City’s contribution,
including amounts from the State, was $4,877,023 or 21.29% of covered payroll.

Members of the Plan who are certified firefighters and police officers make regular
contributions to the Plan at a rate equal to 10.4% of their respective annual earnings.

All eligible employees, as a condition of membership, must agree in writing on becoming a
member to make the contribution specified in the Plan. These contributions are in the form
of payroll deductions until the member has completed twenty-six and two-thirds years of
continuous service or has reached the age of 62, whichever occurs earlier, at which time
payments stop.

Investment and administrative expenses are paid out of plan assets that are replenished by
investments earnings and employee and City contributions in order to maintain the plan
actuarially sound.

Investments

As of September 30, 2002, the Plan held no single investment that exceeded 5% of plan net
assets. See Note 3 (Part a.) for risk categorization of investments.
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e. Municipal Employees Retirement Plans (Continued)

City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 4,877,023
Interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual pension cost 4,877,023

Contributions made (4,877,023)

Increase in net pension obligation -
Net pension obligation, beginning of year -
Net pension obligation, end of year s -

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the October
1, 2001 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included an 8% investment rate of return, net of administrative expenses and
projected salary increases of 6%, which include an inflation component of 4%.

Three Year Trend Information

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Contributed  Obligation
9/30/00 $3,550,488 100% $ -
9/30/01 4,267,395 100 -
9/30/02 4,877,023 100 -

DROP Plan

During December 1996, the CPFFPO adopted the Deferred Retirement Option Plan
(DROP) under Ordinance 1198. The Ordinance allows eligible employees to participant in
the DROP for a maximum of five years. Upon election to participate in the DROP,
monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had the member terminated
employment and elected to receive monthly pension payments, shall be made into the
member’s DROP account. DROP payments contributed to a member’s DROP account
earn or lose interest at the same rate and frequency as in the CPFFPO, less reasonable and
necessary administrative expenses. For the year ended September 30, 2002 investment
income (loss) in the financial statements of the CPFFPO excluded investment income
(loss) on DROP accounts totaling ($38,106).
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f. Defined Contribution Plans
The City offers two defined contribution plans as follows:
City Employees

The City offers a defined contribution plan (the Plan) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) and Ordinance Number 829. The Plan
provides a portable retirement program for “mobile” administrative, professional, and
technical employees of the City. If a participant separates from service and
subsequently becomes employed with another unit of a state or local government, then
the participant may rollover the benefits into his new employer’s pension plan
providing the plan permits rollovers.

At September 30, 2002, there were five (5) Plan members. Plan members are required
to contribute 5% of their annual covered payroll to the Plan. The City is required to
contribute based on the same criteria as that established for the General Employees
Defined Benefit Pension Plan (20.56% of annual covered payroll). The City
contributed $149,236 to the Plan for the year ended September 30, 2002. Provisions of
the Plan may be amended by the City Commission. The Plan is held in a trust for the
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries, consequently, the City has
no fiduciary responsibility, and therefore, the net assets of the Plan are not included in
the City’s financial statements.

Charter Schools and Early Learning Centers Employees

Effective July 1, 2000, the City established a defined contribution plan for employees of
the Charter Schools and Early Learning Centers (the Charter Schools’ Plan) created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) and Ordinance 1345
and amended by Ordinance 1401 dated April 3, 2002. If a participant separates from
service and subsequently becomes employed with another unit of a state or local
government, then the participant may rollover the benefits into his new employer’s
pension plan providing said plan permits rollovers.

At September 30, 2002, there were three hundred forty-eight (348) plan members.
Effective January 1, 2002, the Charter Schools’ Plan members may contribute one
hundred (100%) percent of their gross salary during the fiscal year, up to a maximum
of $11,000. The City’s required contribution is five (5%) percent of the plan member’s
gross salary. For the year ended September 30, 2002, the City contributed $405,857 to
the Charter School’s Plan. Provisions of the Charter School’s Plan may be amended by
the City Commission. The Charter School’s Plan is held in a trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Consequently, the City has no
fiduciary responsibility, and therefore, the net assets of the Charter School’s Plan are
not included in the City’s financial statements.
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NOTE 5. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED)

On November 6, 2002, the City Commission voted to issue revenue bonds for two schools. The
first project consists of building the City’s fourth Charter Elementary School at Pembroke Shores
Park. It will be a 600-student facility costing approximately $7,500,000. Repayment of the
bonds is anticipated to come from state funds through Florida State University (FSU) in
Tallahassee, which is sponsoring the school as a “Developmental Research Charter Laboratory
School” to train teachers and use it as an educational laboratory. The Charter Agreement between
Florida State University and the City was signed on February 3, 2003 for a 15-year term from
July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2018 with provisions for extensions. Construction on the school
began in December 2002 with completion expected by August 2003 in time for the 2003-2004
school year.

The second project consists of converting an existing building at the City’s Howard C. Forman
Human Services Campus for approximately $500,000. The school would serve 40 autistic and
special-needs children, and include a standard day care center to accommodate 50 children. Final
arrangements for issuing the proposed revenue bonds are awaiting Commission Public Hearings
and the formalization of such arrangements with Florida State University. The agreement with
FSU requires the City, as the operator of the school, to pay a $250,000 annual University
Oversight and Research Fee to FSU. The City intends to apply for Sparsity Supplements, which
are stipend funds from the State of Florida, to pay for this annual obligation to FSU.

Pursuant to a City Commission vote on February 10, 2003, the City agreed to transfer the duties
of the City Manager and the Deputy City Manager to CHARLES F. DODGE, LLC, a Florida
limited liability company (“CFD”). The agreement is for a 5-year period commencing February
15, 2003 with a 5-year renewal option. The agreement provides for an annual payment of
$669,000 to CFD paid in advance with monthly installments beginning March 1, 2003, and
annual cost of living increases each October 1st. The City will also provide at no charge to CFD
offices, facilities, personnel, equipment, supplies, and specified insurance. The agreement can be
terminated by the City upon 90 days prior written notice, or by CFD upon 180 days prior written
notice. Upon termination or non-renewal of the agreement, the City Manager and Deputy City
Manager will transition back to employee status at the compensation equal to that amount payable
to them, individually, at the time of their transition into this agreement.

On April 2, 2003, the City Commission voted to approve an agreement between the City and its
firefighters’ union. The agreement, which includes a no strike provision, is for three years
retroactive to October 1, 2002 and terminates on September 30, 2005. The firefighters will
receive a 2% wage increase retroactive to October 1, 2002; a 2% wage increase on April 1, 2004;
and a 2% wage increase on April 1, 2005. Pension benefits will also be increased annually for
cost of living adjustments beginning April 1, 2005. The agreement provides for retirement after
20 years’ service with benefits of 80% of the final pay, with a provision to allow additional
employment for another five years with the same pay scale and raises, but with no further
increases in pension benefits. The agreement will provide $54,000 top pay for the lowest-ranking
firefighter in the first year of the contract, increasing to $56,000 in the third year. The cost of the
raises for the 210 members of the firefighters’ union is estimated to be $130,000 during the first
year, and the cost of the new pension benefits to be $4,000,000 over the three-year period. The
City is considering borrowing an estimated $39,720,000, in insured taxable pension fund bonds,
over a 30-year term to pay for the increased costs resulting from this agreement. Interest rates on
these bonds are estimated to range from 3.1% to 5.8% over the term of the bonds.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $44,887,356 $44,489913 $46,486,189  $1,996,276
Licenses and permits 10,030,837 10,030,837 9,141,666 (889,171)
Intergovernmental revenue 10,640,945 10,856,690 9,758,986  (1,097,704)
Charges for services 20,436,289 20,676,686 19,964,434 (712,252)
Fines and forfeits 976,259 976,259 850,608 (125,651)
Miscellaneous revenues 13,259,831 13,262,431 12,722,004 (540,427)
Total revenues 100,231,517 100,292,816 98,923 887  (1,368,929)
Expenditures
General government services 21,948,841 22,840,312 18,577,568 4,262,744
Public safety 55,420,618 55,445,836 52,125,314 3,320,522
Physical environment 4472478 4335478 3,185,017 1,150,461
Economic environment 1,064,665 1,066,431 740,292 326,139
Human services 5,052,655 5,282,527 4,470,460 812,067
Culture/Recreation 15,664,486 15,300,064 12,906,673 2,393,391
Total expenditures 103,623,743 104,270,648 92,005,324 12,265,324
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,392,226) (3,977,832) 6,918,563 10,896,395
Other financing uses
Transfers out (398,630) (393,006)  (323,358) 69,648
Total other financing uses (398,630) (393,006)  (323,358) 69,648
Net change in fund balances (3,790,856) (4,370,838) 6,595,205 10,966,043
Fund balances - beginning 10,313,704 10,313,704 10,313,704 -
Fund balances - ending $6,522,848  $5,942,866 $16,908,909 $10,966,043

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Fiscal
Year

(A) Annual
Required

Contributions

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

September 30, 2002
Employer State
Contributions Contributions

General Employees

2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

Firefighters and Police Officers

2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

$

$

3,604,737
3,361,081
2,800,921
2,336,107
1,882,862
1,516,854

4,877,023
4,267,395
3,550,488
2,750,728
2,366,116
2,467,000

$ 3,004,737 $
3,361,081
2,800,921
2,336,107
1,882,862
1,516,854

$ 3,043,183 $
3,254,269
2,580,359
1,762,362
1,450,517
1,608,478

(A) Actuarially determined contribution requirements.
(B) Total actual contributions as a percentage of annual required contributions.

1,233,840
1,013,126
970,129
988,366
915,599
858,522

Total 3B)
Employer Percentage

Contributions Contributed

$ 3,604,737 100.0%
3,361,081 100.0
2,800,921 100.0
2,336,107 100.0
1,882,862 100.0
1,516,854 100.0

$ 4,877,023 100.0%
4,267,395 100.0
3,550,488 100.0
2,750,728 100.0
2,366,116 100.0
2,467,000 100.0

The information presented in the required supplemental schedules above was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases*
Cost of living adjustments

*Includes inflation at

General Employees

10/1/2001

Entry age normal frozen
initial liability

Level dollar, closed

15 years

Fair value

8.25%
8.50%

None

3.0%

-70-

Firefighters and Police Officers

10/1/2001

Entry age normal cost

Level dollar, closed

21 years
Fair value

8.0%
6.0%
None

4.0%



Actuarial

Valuation

Date

(a)
Actuarial
Value
of Assets

General Employees

10/1/2001
10/1/2000
10/1/1999
10/1/1998
10/1/1997
10/1/1996

Firefighters and Police Officers

10/1/2001
10/1/2000
10/1/1999
10/1/1998
10/1/1997
10/1/1996

$45,363,715
41,116,588
35,531,088
30,441,656
26,713,835
22,998,034

$89,587,047
81,680,000
68,869,000
58,718,000
50,966,000
39,920,000

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

September 30, 2002

(b)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) -

$ 52,913,807

48,928,587
43,534,603
38,673,221
28,624,021
27,046,393

$ 103,737,625

93,080,000
79,095,000
64,162,000
55,530,000
47,437,000

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)

(b)-(a)

7,550,092
7,811,999
8,003,515
8,231,565
1,910,186
4,048,359

$ 14,150,578

11,400,000
10,226,000
5,444,000
4,564,000
7,517,000

UAAL
asa
Percentage
Funded (c) of Covered
Ratio Covered Payroll
(a) / (b) Payroll (b-a) / (c)
85.7% $17,534,331 43.1%
84.0% 17,310,177 45.1
81.6 14,777,035 54.2
78.7 13,037,087 63.1
93.3 11,346,678 16.8
85.0 10,651,263 38.0
86.4% $22,906,692 61.8%
87.8 20,958,000 54.4
87.1 19,493,000 52.5
91.5 17,676,000 30.8
91.8 16,128,000 28.3
84.2 15,209,000 494
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds:

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Road and Bridge Fund- To account for receipt and disbursement of funds
earmarked for construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
streetlights.

State Housing Initiative Program Fund — To account for State funds received
from the Florida Housing Finance Agency. These funds are used for the
following:

Minor home repairs.
Weatherization.

Roof replacement program.
Emergency repair program.
Administration.
Homebuyer assistance.

A

Community Development Block Grant Fund - To account for Federal funds
received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
These funds are used to provide the following:

Home repairs.
Weatherization.

Emergency repair program.
Commercial revitalization.
Homebuyer assistance.
Administration.

Senior Center transportation.

NNk WD =

Law Enforcement Grant Fund — To account for the Federal funded program:
Victim’s Advocate (Victims of Crime Act)

One (1) part time Clerk Specialist and one (1) part time intern.
Overtime.

Benefits.

Operating expenses.

Office equipment.

SNk WD =



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds (continued):

ADA Paratransit Program Fund - To account for local funds received from
Broward County for disability transportation. These funds are used for salaries,
benefits, and operational expenses to run this program.

Police Community Service Grant - To account for the Federal funded program:
Block Grant:
1. Operating expenses
2. Office equipment

Cops More Grant - To account for the Federal funded program:

Cops More:
1. One (1) full time Micro Computer Specialist.
2. Overtime.
3. Benefits.
4. Operating expenses.
5. Office equipment.
COPS Grants - To account for the Federal funded programs:
Cops Ahead:
1. Two (2) full time officers
2. Benefits.
Cops in School:
1. Two (2) full time officers.
2. Benefits.

Community Bus Program - To account for funds received from the Broward
County Transit Grant and the South Broward Hospital District Grant to provided
subsidized transportation to local residents.

Charter Schools — To account for funds received from the Broward County
School Board for the operation of elementary, middle, and high schools owned and
operated by the City. The charter schools have a fiscal year end of June 30th.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds: (Continued)

Older Americans Act — To account for Federal funds received from the Division
of Health and Human Services and from the local Area-wide Agency on Aging.
These funds are used to provide the following:

1. Premises where meals to senior citizens are served by a private

company under a state contract.

Information, counseling and referrals.

Weekend adult day care.

Alzheimer’s Day Care Program on Friday Saturday, and Sunday.

Health support services.

Recreational activities/classes for senior citizens.

Transportation to and from the center and for doctor’s

appointments and grocery shopping.

8. Health education, blood pressure screening, fitness and nutrition
consulting offered by a registered nurse.

Nk WD

Confiscated Treasury — To account for funds and property seized or confiscated
by the City’s Police Department in connection with Federal Treasury forfeiture
cases.

Confiscated Justice — To account for funds and property seized or confiscated by
the City’s Police Department in connection with Federal Justice forfeiture cases.

$2 Police Assessment — To account for funds and property seized or confiscated
by the City’s Police Department in connection with local forfeiture cases.

FDLE (Florida Department of Law Enforcement) — To account for funds and

property seized or confiscated by the City’s Police Department in connection with
State forfeiture cases.

Permanent Fund:

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the
extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for the benefit of the
government or its citizenry.

Wetland Mitigation Trust Fund - To account for funds donated by developers,
which are used to maintain and administer wetlands located in the City.
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

e Debt Service Fund

e Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

= Road and Bridge Fund

= State Housing Initiative Program
= Community Development Block Grant
= Law Enforcement Grant

= ADA Paratransit Program

= Police Community Service Grant
= Cops More Grant

= COPS Grants

= Community Bus Program

= Charter Schools

= Older Americans Act

= Confiscated - Treasury

= Confiscated - Justice

» $2 Police Assessment

*» FDLE

= Wetland Mitigation Trust Fund
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -Budget and Actual

Debt Service Fund
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Revenues
Taxes:
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Investment Income
Rental revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Other debt service costs

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Revenue bonds issued

Current refunding of Certificates of Indebtednes:

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
960,582 $ 960,582 $ 721,833 $  (238,749)
1,955,478 2,379,621 2,158,398 (221,223)
601,000 601,000 207,317 (393,683)
3,833,038 3,833,038 3,456,284 (376,754)
7,350,098 7,774,241 6,543,832 (1,230,409)
5,072,791 3,925,000 3,925,000 -
4,755,743 5,360,539 5,360,537 2
2,875 1,483,903 1,477,904 5,999
9,831,409 10,769,442 10,763,441 6,001
(2,481,311) (2,995,201) (4,219,609) (1,224,408)
- 23,625,824 23,625,824 -
- (19,792,421) (19,792,421) -
- 3,833,403 3,833,403 -
(2,/481,311) 838,202 (386,206) (1,224,408)
12,118,329 12,118,329 12,118,329 12,118,329
9,637,018 $ 12956,531 $ 11,732,123 $ 10,893,921
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l“hl

Surpus ‘saoueeq pung
Suruurgaq ‘saouereq punyg
soouereq punj ur dJueYd JON

3ST) S0IN0S FuIouLUIJ IAYI0 [BIO],
INO SIJSUBI],
Ul SI9JSueI],
:(S9sn) $32an0s JuuURUL} YL

saINIpuadxa 1940
SANUAAI JO (AOURIDTJIP) $SAIXH

samipuadxa [e10],

SQOTAIAS UBWINH

JUSWIUOIIAUF OTWOUOYH

uonelrodsuely,

Kyo3eg OTIqNg

JUSWIUIIAOS [BIQUID)
:saamypuadxy

SONUAAJI [RIO],
L Ue)
QNUIAI [BIUDY
suonnqIIuo)
QUIOOUT JUSUI}SIAU]
SIIOJI0J PUE SOUL]
SQOTAIAS 0] SA3IeYD)
[BIUSWUIA0TIAU]
SJUQWISSASSE Teroadg
soxe],

1SONUIARY

(ponunuo)
(000°0%) $ - $ 0000 $ (LO9WOI'D$  08LITOT $ 989°0SHT $ 9068y $ (ILF'G9E) $
- - - - - 29106 ¥29°106 29106
(000°0%) - 000°0% (LO9'YOT'T) 08L°120C 790°6vS°1 QILTLY)  (S60°L9T°T)
(000°0%) - 00001 (LO9F0T'T) 08L120C 790°61S°T Q1L27LY)  (S60°L9T'T)
TTI'E9LT IST°880°T  €LTIS8T  99LY91°C 8EETL6'T £68°TSE'E T€T°GEE’S  LS8TITS
TTIE9LT IS1880°'T  €LTIS8T 99L991°C - - - -
- - - - 8EETR6°T €68°CSE'e 1€T°CEE'S  LSYTITS
(TT1e08‘1) IST°880°T  €LT168CT  6ST°090°T s SS6°'106Y €IST98Y  TOL'SH6'E
- - - - 0€°6 20€°01 000°'T 0001
- - - - 000°00C 1619001 161408 -
(000°0%) - 00001 00001 (598%7) SeI'se 000°0S 000°0S
- - - - - 009°€0T 009°€0T 009°€0T
(TTr'eoL'T) IST'880°T  €LTIS8T  6S10T0°1 (#88°LTT) LSS096 IWP8LO'T  T¥H'8LO'T
- - - - (880°¢T) LY'66 096°CI1 -
- $ - $ - $ - $ (€0l $ 869865C § T1TLTI9TE  1TLTI9TS
(PAnESaN) Sjunowry  eul [euIsLIQ) (2a11832N) spunoury euL] [euIsLIQ)
AnISOq [enoy Sjunoury pajespng CXVICIR | [enpoy Sjunowry pajaspng
193png [eury 193png [eury
UIIA SOUBLIEA UIIA DOURLIEA
W30 9AIJeNIU] SUISNOY] 9)8)S pun,] 93pLIg pue peoy

spun,f INuIAY [B1adg

00T ‘0€ 19quandag papuy 189X [BSL

Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON
[EN)OY pue 193png - sddUR[RY pun,J ul SASULY)) pue SRAMIPUIAXF ‘SoNUIANY JO MPIAYIS

EPLIOL ] ‘Saul 3M0oIquidd Jo L))



Iwhl
(panunuo))

: 5 - 5 - 5 - § § -

$ (626'€0S) $

(626°€0S)

(626'€0S)

P88°LT P88°LT 8LY'66S €€€°865

TI8'L6T°T

626'161°T

LLLL8S 608°SLY
- - - - TOLTT STl
P88°LT P88°LT - -

985°€90°1
STTYEL

068°650°T
6€0°T€T

P88°LT (8L¥'665) €€€°865

TI8'L6T°T

SILY1 P88°LT P88°LT (8LY665) €€€'865

T18°L6T°T

000889

(dAnesdN)
IADISO
193png [eury
)M DUBLIEA

[euL] [eusLI)
sjunowry pajespng

(PAneddN)
AADISO]
13png [eury
YA UBLIB A

sjunoury
[emay

spunoury

[euLy

[euslo

Surpua ‘saoueeq punyg
Suruurdoq ‘seouereq punyg
sooue[eq puny ur oFueyd JON

asn) s92IN0S Furoueuly 1910 [BIO],
1NO SIQJSuBI],
Ul SI9JSuRI],
:(s9sn) $32an0s uuUBUl JBYIQ

saImIpuadxa 1940
SANUAAI JO (KOURIOIJAP) SSAOXH

saripuadxa 18107,

SQOTAIOS URWINH

JUSWIUOITAUH JTWOUOIH

uonejyrodsuery,

ISEILING (SR |

JUQWIUIAAOS [BIQUID)
ssoamypuadxy

SONUAAQI [RIO],
RELH0)
ONUAASI [BIUY
suonNqIIuUoD)
QWIOOU] JUSUIISAAUT
SIIJI0J pUR SQUL]
SQITAIAS J0J Sa3IeYD)
[BIUWIUISA0SIAU]
SJUSWISSASSE [e10adg
SoXE],

1SINUIANY

[enpy

sjunowry pajespng

JURIL) JUSWDIOJUG] ME']

JuR.IL) YO0[g JUSWAOPAI(] AJUNUIWO))

spun,f INuIAY [B1adg

7007 ‘0€ 1aquidydag papuy Jedx [edsty
(panuyuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul] o1quid g Jo A1)



Imhl

Surpus ‘saouereq pung
uruurdaq ‘seoueeq punyg
sqoueleq punj ur a3ueyd JON

sn) $90IN0S JurouLUl} IAYJ0 [BI0],
INO SIQJSUBI],
UT SIQJSURI],
:(s9sn) sdanos supueuy JBYIO)

samyipuadxe 1940
SANUAAI JO (AOUSIJIJAP) SSAOXH

saripuadxa [e10],

SQOTAIOS URWUINH

JUSWIUOITAUH JTWOUOIH

uonejrodsuer],

K1ogeg o11qnd

JUQWIUIAAOS [BIQUID)
:soamypuadxy

SONUAAQI [BIO],
RELH0)
ONUAADI [BIUY
suonNqIIuUoD)
QWIOOU] JUSUIISIAUT
SIIQJI0] pUR SQUL]
SQOTAIAS 10] Sa3IeyD)
[BIUWUISA0ZIAU]
SJUQWISSASSE [e10adg
SoXE],

1SINUIAIY

(ponunuo))
65e'er § - $ (6seey)  § (OLECY) $ L69°C8 $ Le9T8 0§ - $ er'o9) $
- - - - - CIv'LOT CIv'LOT €1¥°LOT
65e'er - (6Se‘ch) (9L£69) L69°C8 91L%0) (€120 (LE8'L9T)
1L0°9¢ 16EY1 (08910 - - - - -
1L0°9€ 16€71 (089°12) - - - - -
88C'L (T6c+1) 6L9°12) (9L£°9) L69T8 91L%2) (ETFL0D  (LE8'L9T)
89T°¢CL LOS'LYT SL9°0TT 9LES9 Sédéal 8ET°8EE €9¢€°08Y LEV'Y6Y
- - - - Sdarad| 8EI°8EE €9€08Y LEV' V6P
89T°¢CL LOS'LYT SL9°0TT 9LES9 - - - -
(088°9) o1T'¢cel 966861 - (876°65) whEIe 0S6°TLE 009°9z¢
00 818°¢ 898°¢ - (6€5Y) 19%'C 000°L 000°L
(098°9) 89T°6C1 8C1°G61 - (686'%5) 196°01¢ 0S6°69¢ 009'61¢
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
(PAnESaN)  sjunoury [euLy [euIsLIQ) (PAnpE3dN)  sjunowry [euLy [euIsLQ
AAIISO [enpPY Sjunoury pajespng AnISod ey Sjunoury pajespng
13png [eury 193png [eur]
YHM DUBLIBA YHM DUBLIBA
JUEBIL) 9JIAIIS AJUNWLIO)) N[O WEIZ01J JIsuenely V(v

spun,f INuIAY [B1adg

7007 ‘0€ 1aquidydag papuy Jedx [edsty
(panuyuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul] o1quid g Jo A1)



lOWl

(panunuo))
08Z6¢£1 $ - $ (08T'6€1) $ (08T°6E) $ 9¢9°8T1 - $ (9€9'811) $ (ze0'06D) $ Surpuo ‘saouefeq pung
- : . - . : - - Suruurdaq ‘seduereq puny
08Z6¢£1 - (08T'6€1)  (08T'6ET) 9¢9'8T1 - (9€9'81D)  (T€0'061) sodue[eq puny ur aFueyd 10N
1€6'961 16C°LC1 (0¥9°69) (0v9°'69) 1€0°86 €IL'SE (81€°6S) (S¥T'€0) 351) $92IN0S FUTOULUTY TAYIO [B10],
: : . z : z - - N0 SIJSUBI],
1€6961 16C°LT1 (0v9°69) (0v9°'69) 1€0°86 €1L'8E (81€°6S) (S¥T'€0) Ul SI9JSUeL],
:(S9sn) $32an0s JuuURUL} YL
(169°LS) (16C°L1) (0¥9°69) (0v9°'69) S09°0C (€1L'8E) (81€°6S) (£8L°991) sImIpuadxa 1940
SANUAAI JO (AOURIDTJIP) $SAIXH
Sey 8ITSHT €S9°GHT €S9°'SrT 018°18 LEO00T Ly8T81 LSLT6T sarmrpuadxe [ejo,
: : . - : : : - SQOTAIQS UBWUNY
- - - - - - - - JUSWIUOIIAUH OTWOUOIH
- - - - - - - - uorjeyrodsuer]y,
Sey 8ITSHT €S9°GHT €S9°'SrT 018°T8 LEO00T LYT181 LSLT6T Kyo3eg OTIqNg
- - - - - - - - JUSWIUIIAOS [BIQUID)
:saamypuadxy
(980°8S) LTOLIT €10°9L1 €10'9L1 (S0T°19) ¥TET9 6CS°TCl 000°ST SONULARI TR0,
- . . . . - - - U310
- - - - - - - - QNUAARI TRIUSY
- - - - - - - - suonNqINuUoD
- - QWIOOU] JUS)SOAUT
- - . - - - - - SI10JI0J PUE SOUT,]
- - - - - - - - SQITAIAS J0J Sa3IeyD)
(980°8S) LTOLIT €10'9L1 €10'9L1 (S0T°19) ¥TET9 6C5°TCl 000°ST [EIUSWIUIdAOTIAU]
- - - - - - - - sjuowIssasse [eroadg
- $ - $ - $ - - - $ - - SOXe T,
1SINUIAY
(2A11832N) Sjunowy eur| [euIdLQ (PAnESaN)  sjunowry eul] [euIsLIQ)
AANISO [emoy sjunowry pajespng JADISO] [enpy sjunowry pajaspng
13png [eury 193png [eury
UM DUBLIBA UM DUBLIBA
sjuels) SI0D jJuels) 3I0JA sdo)

Spun,f anudAY [B1adg

7007 ‘0€ 1aquidydag papuy Jedx [edsty
(psnunuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul o1quidg Jo AND



- M wl
(penunuo)) 200T ‘0¢ Unf JO SV

08S°€IL  $§ 988'6LIY § 90€'9r'E § TLSSS6C §  00LST $ 86v'86 $ 86LT8 § (SKLO) $

- 9L9°STYY 9L9°CTY'Yy 9L9°CTr'Y - - - -

08S°€TL (06L'S120) (0LE'656) GOT0LY'T) 00L'ST 86186 86L°C8 (SyL'S)
(L£OL) €96'Ch1 000°0ST 000°0ST - - - -
LS6TIS (SesesTD  (@or'99L' D)  (T6¥'919°1) - - - -
(#66'615) 867'96¢'T T6v'916'1 TOV'99L'T - - - -
LT9'0TL (€SL°88¢) (0LE'60T°'T)  (+OT°029°'T) 00L°ST 86186 86LT8 (SyL'S)
0L600%'T PLY'EIEOT WP VILLT  TECHPILI 619°¢1 T1¥°L0T 090°1CC 109°61¢C

0L6°00%'T VLY'ETEQT v PILLT  TEEPPILI - - - -

- - 6v9°cl T1¥°L0T 090°12T 109612
(£5£089) 1TLYT6'ST  $LO'SO9OT  LTTHTSST 1S0°C 606°S0€ 868°€0¢E 9G8°€1T
(000'02) - 000°0C 000°0T - - - -
(S98°€1T) 980°86 1S6°11T IS6°T1T - - - -

1ve 67801 ¥16°L01 000°0S - - - -
(18¢°€00) 10TCI1 (44948 786°07E - [4 [4 -

YLLT YLLTOE 000°00€ 000°00€ (€L) L2001 001°91 001°01
(zee'sve) SOVYOE'ST  LTL'6YOST  $69'1T9V1 21T 088°68C 9GL'L8C 961161

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
(aanE3AN) SJUNoOWy eur| [euIsLQ (2a11832N) spunoury [euLy [euIsLIQ)
dANISOq [en)oy sjunoury pajespng AANISOJ [eny sjunowry pajespng
13png [eury 193png [eury
UM DUBLIBA )M DUBLIB A
+S[00DS J9JIRY)) WEIZ01] Sng AJlunuuio,)

spun,f INuIAY [B1adg

7007 ‘0€ 1aquidydag papuy Jedx [edsty
(psnunuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul o1quidg Jo AND

Surpua ‘saoueeq punyg
Suruurdoq ‘seouereq punyg

sooue[eq puny ur oFueyd JON

asn) $0IN0S Furoueury 190 T8I0 ],

INO SIQJSUBI],
Ul SI9JSuRI],
:(s9sn) $32anos Supueul JRYI()

saImIpuadxa 1940
SANUAAI JO (KOURIOIJAP) SSAOXH

saripuadxa 18107,

SQOTAIOS URWINH

JUSWIUOITAUH JTWOUOIH

uonejyrodsuery,

ISEILING (SR |

JUQWIUIAAOS [BIQUID)
ssoamypuadxy

SONUAAQI [RIO],
RELH0)
ONUAASI [BIUY
suonNqIIuUoD)
QWIOOU] JUSUIISAAUT
SIIJI0J pUR SQUL]
SQITAIAS J0J Sa3IeYD)
[BIUWIUISA0SIAU]
SJUSWISSASSE [e10adg
SoXE],

1SINUIANY



(panunuo))

lNWl

66£9L

$ Iwr'es $ TwOEl  § e6vTCl $

¢20°6

$ e6Iv'6lc

$ v6eLTe

§ €Ly90C

$ Surpus ‘seoue[eq pung

66£9L

CI0°L8 CI0°L8 TI0°L8
62T (0L6°€L) (€1S*vL)

¢20°6

768°€ST
L95°C9

T68°¢ST
(8S¥'97)

T68°esT
(6LELY)

Suruurdaq ‘seoueeq pung

sooueleq puny ur aJueYD JON

asn) S90INOS FuroUBUT) IOYIO T8I0 ],

JNO SIQJSUBI],
Ul SI9JSueI],
:(sasn) $32anos suueuly JBYIO)

62T (0L6°¢L) (€1SvL)

¢T0°T6

L9S°S9

(8S¥'90)

(6LELY)

sarmipuadxe 1040
SANUAAAI JO (AOUAIDIP) $SAIXY

- €16'6L €16'6L

ISPl

200918

YIS°L86

187918

samyipuadxa [e10],

415171

200978

Y1S°L86

187918

SOOIAISS UBWUNE
JUSWIUOITAUF OTWOUOJH
uonelodsuel],
K1oges o11qnd
JUQUIUIIAOS [BISULD)
:soamypuadxy

)

695116

950'196

T01°69L

SONUIARI[BIOT,

£vs evs -

(0zs'61)

(£99°'60)

$€6'79
TL9'e

S6LT8
TL9'e

629'7L8

869°TOL

1PY0
ONUIAJI [eJUY

suonnqIIuo)

QUIOOU] JUSUIISIAU]

SIIQJIO] PUE SOUL]

SQIIAIAS 10] SA3IRYD

[BIUSWIUII A0S INU]

SJUQWISSASSE Te10adg

$ Soxe],
1SINUIAIY

(PanedoN) sjunoury euLL [euIsliO

ADISO

ey sjunoury pajespng

193png [eur]
M DUBLIBA

(danesN)
aapIsoq

sjunoury
[emay

193png [eury
)M SOURLIEA

TeuL]

[euIsLI)

Ssjunowry pajespng

AINSBALY, - PIJRISUO))

1PV UBdLRWY P[0

spun,f INuIAY [B1adg

7007 ‘0€ 1aquidydag papuy Jedx [edsty
(psnunuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul o1quidg Jo AND



lMWl

(panunuo))
1€L°TC § TSIt $ 1696 $ 1696 $ 9619sC  $ 69I'Tly  § €L6¥ST $ Tar'e6  $ Surpuo ‘sadue[eq pung
- T6L°L6 T6L°L6 T6L°L6 - OV OV OV Suruur3aq ‘sedue[eq pun.g
1€L°TC 0€9°LT (101°9) (101°9) 961°9ST (€L8°TE) (690°682) (029'7¥€) sooue[eq puny ur a3ueyd 1oN
: : : : z - - - sn) $90IN0S JurouLUl} IAYJ0 [BI0],
: : : : z z = - 1IN0 SIQJSURI],
- - - - - - - - UT SIQJSUBI],
:(s9sn) sdanos supueuy JBYIO)
T€L°TT 0€9°LT (101°9) (101°9) 961°9ST (€L8°TE) (690°687) (029v1e) SIMIPUadxa 1940
SANUAAI JO (AOUSIJIJAP) SSAOXH
8IE6¢E OLY'LT 88L'99 88L'99 TI8'89C 80086 0T8'99¢ 0T8'99¢ saImrpuadxa [e1o],
: : : : z z - - SQOTAIRS UBWUNY
- - - - - - - - JUSUWIUOIAUF OTWOUOJH
- - - - - - - - uonjelrodsueiy,
8IE6¢E OLY'LT 88L'99 88L'99 TI8'89C 80086 0T8'99¢ 0T8'99¢ K1oyeg orqng
- - - - - - - - JUQWIUIAAOS [BIQUID)
:soamypuadxy
(L8S91) 00T°Sy L8919 L8919 91977 SET'C9 ISLLL 00T°CT SONUSASI[BI0 L,
= Z Z - . - - - _10
- - - - - - - - ONUAADI [BIUY
- - - - - - - - suonNqIIuUoD)
(r1°e) 9sTC 00v'S 00v'S (91977 7856 00T°CT 00T°CT SWOJU] JUSUWISIAUT
(err'en) 8Ty L8T9S L8T9S - 16568 16568 - S)10JJ0J pue SAUI]
- - - - - - - - SQOTAIRS J0F Sa3IeYD)
- - - - - - - - [BIUQWIUIdA0SIAIUT
- - - - - - - - SJUQWISSASSE [e10adg
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ soxe],
1SINUIAIY
(PAnE3N) sjunoury [euly [euIslQO (ADEZN) sjunoury [euly [eu3LQ
ANISOJ enpy sjunoury pajespng JANISO] [enpy Sjunoury pajespng
193png [eury 193png [eul]
M DUBLIBA M UBLIE A

JUIWISSIASSY N[0 T$

RSN - PIIRISYUO))

Spun,f anudAY [B1adg

00T ‘0€ 19quandag papuy 189X [BSL

Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON
[en)oy pue 193png] - SPdUR[RY pun,[ ul SS3UBY) pue SAIMIPUIAX]] ‘SINUIAIY JO I[NPIAYIS

(psnunuo))

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul o1quidg Jo AND



l.VWl

102°8¢ $

96L°69S  $

C6ST1ES §

S6S18S  $

12T108

§ SYL'98S'TS  tCST8L

$ ver'shy

$ Surpus ‘seoue[eq pung

102°8¢

S65°65S
10201

S65°65S
(000°82)

S65°65S
000

12T408

6€C°LLET
90t'60¢C

6EC°LLET
(ST8'76S)

6EE°LLET
(S16'826)

uruurdaq ‘seoueeq punyg

sqoueleq punj ur a3ueyd JON

Isn) $0IN0S Furoueury 190 T8I0 ],

INO SIQJSUBI],
UT SIQJSURI],
:(s9sn) sdanos supueuy JBYIO)

(000°82)

901'60C

(S1816S)

(S16'826)

samyipuadxe 1940
SANUAAI JO (AOUSIJIJAP) SSAOXH

000°¢

9L0'9S1

STI'000'T

SIE€00'T

saripuadxa [e10],

9L0'9S1

STI'000'T

SIEE00'T

SQOTAIOS URWUINH
JUSUWIUOIAUF OTWOUOJH
uonjelrodsueiy,
K1ogeg o11qnd
JUQWIUIAAOS [BIQUID)
:soamypuadxy

(000°60)

(828°6€)

T81'S9¢

SONUIAJI [BI0 ],

(000°60)

(828°6€)

TLSYE
016°0¢€

00v'vL
0160¢€

YO
ONUIAJI [RIUY

suonNqIIuUoD)

QWIOOU] JUSUIISIAUT

SIIQJI0] pUR SQUL]

SQOTAIAS 10] Sa3IeyD)

[BIUWUISA0ZIAU]

SJUQWISSASSE [e10adg

$ SoXE],
1SINUIAIY

(danesN)
AANISOJ
198png [eury
)M DUBLIEA

sjunoury
[enpy

[euy [eUISHQ (eADE3N)

IADISO
193png [eury
M DURLIEA

Sjunowry pajespng

spunoury

[enpy

TeuL]

[euBLIQ

sjunowry pajaspng

pun,] ISn], UONESNITA PUB[IDAL

H1d4d

Pun,[ JUSUBULIDJ

Spun,f aNudAY [eradg

00T ‘0€ 19quandag papuy 189X [BSL

(psnunuo))
Spun,{ [BJUSUILLIIAOL) I0[EUIUON

[en)Oy pue 393png - SRdUB[RY pun,f ul S9TULY ) pue S2INIIPUIdX7] ‘SINUIAIY JO AMNPIYDIS

BPLIOL ] ‘Saul o1quidg Jo AND



Y )
MM

W

g

S
JOI US AND
PROGRESS

This page intentionally left blank.



FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

* PENSION TRUST FUNDS

* AGENCY FUNDS
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PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Employees Retirement Funds - To account for the accumulation of
resources to be used for retirement benefits to City’s General Employees and
Firefighters and Police Officers. Resources are contributed by employees at
rates fixed by law and by the City at amounts determined by annual actuarial

valuations.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Assets

Investments
Due from other funds
Receivables:
Accrued interest and dividends
Other

Total assets
Liabilities
DROP participants payable
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

September 30, 2002
Police
General Officers and
Employees Firefighters

Pension Fund Pension Fund

Totals

$ 44253599 $ 81,872,576

$ 126,126,175

- 133,484 133,484
- 488,226 488,226
- 7,763 7,763
44,253,599 82,502,049 126,755,648
- 1,964,467 1,964,467
- 37,903 37,903
- 2,002,370 2,002,370

$ 44,253,599 $ 80,499,679

$ 124,753,278
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Police
General Officers and
Employees Firefighters
Pension Fund Pension Fund Totals
Additions
Contributions:
Plan members $ 1,762,532 2,683,777 $ 4,446,309
Employer 3,604,737 3,643,183 7,247,920
State/County - 1,233,840 1,233,840
Total contributions 5,367,269 7,560,800 12,928,069
Investment earnings (loss):
Investment loss (1,180,048) (157,823) (1,337,871)
Less investment expenses 50,188 335,268 385,456
Net investment loss (1,230,236) (493,091) (1,723,327)
Gain from demutualization 2,320,963 - 2,320,963
Total additions 6,457,996 7,067,709 13,525,705
Deductions
Pension benefits 2,392,087 2,269,426 4,661,513
Refunds of contributions (60,977) 122,790 61,813
Administrative expenses 8,034 194,563 202,597
Total deductions 2,339,144 2,586,779 4,925,923
Change in net assets 4,118,852 4,480,930 8,599,782
Net assets- beginning 40,134,747 76,018,749 116,153,496
Net assets- ending $ 44253599 $ 80,499,679 $ 124,753,278
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AGENCY FUNDS

The General Trust Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for other funds.

The Sanitation Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for a private organization.



Y )
MM

W

g

S
JOI US AND
PROGRESS

This page intentionally left blank.



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

General Trust Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Miscellaneous accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Sanitation Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Customer accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Total - All Agency Funds

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Customer accounts receivable
Miscellaneous accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2001 Additions Deductions 2002
2,569,855 69,080,392 $ 68,618,590 $ 3,031,657
7,170 106 7,170 106
2,577,025 69,080,498 $ 68,625,760 $ 3,031,763
2,389,940 64,809,672 $ 64,167,849 $ 3,031,763
187,085 4,422,466 4,609,551 -
2,577,025 69,232,138 $ 68,777,400 $ 3,031,763
196,243 $11,892,760 $12,033,265 $ 55,738
590,598 10,120,692 9,816,999 894,291
786,841 22013452 $ 21,850,264 $ 950,029
786,841 10,743,899 $ 10,580,711 $ 950,029
786,841 10,743,899 $ 10,580,711 $ 950,029
2,766,098 80,973,152 $ 80,651,855 $ 3,087,395
590,598 10,120,692 9,816,999 894,291
7,170 106 7,170 106
3,363,866 91,093,950 $ 90,476,024 $ 3,981,792
786,841 10,743,899 $ 10,580,711 $ 950,029
2,389,940 64,809,672 64,167,849 3,031,763
187,085 4,422,466 4,609,551 -
3,363,866 79,976,037 $ 79,358,111 $ 3,981,792
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Schedule of Capital Assets - By Source

September 30, 2002
General Charter*
Government Schools Total
Governmental funds capital assets:
Land $ 48,334,580 $ - $ 48,334,580
Buildings 81,249,226 - 81,249,226
Improvements other than buildings 38,251,081 2,472,962 40,724,043
Machinery and equipment 37,592,358 1,837,827 39,430,185
Construction in progress 90,588,174 - 90,588,174
Infrastructure 31,336,568 - 31,336,568
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 327,351,987 $ 4,310,789 $ 331,662,776

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:

General government $ 277,032,311 $ - $ 277,032,311
Federal revenue sharing fund 266,134 - 266,134
Federal and state grants 1,986,432 - 1,986,432
Law enforcement trust fund 1,152,680 - 1,152,680
Gifts and donations 46,914,430 - 46,914,430
Charter Elementary School - 1,860,706 1,860,706
Charter Middle School - 2,252,006 2,252,006
Charter High School - 198,077 198,077

Total investment in governmental funds capital assets $ 327,351,987 $ 4,310,789 $ 331,662,776

*As of June 30, 2002
Note: This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly,

the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the
capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Function and Activity
General government:

Legislative

City manager

Personnel

City clerk

City engineer

City planner

Finance

Central stores

Maintenance compound
General government building

Total general government

Public safety:
Code enforcement
Building and zoning
Police
Fire
Rescue
Total public safety

Transportation:
Streets and sidewalks
Transit system

Total transportation

Human services:
Community services

Parks and recreation:
Recreation
Landscaping

Total parks and recreation

Intragovernmental services:
Surplus property

Total general fixed assets
allocated to functions

Construction in progress
Total general government

Education* (charter schools):
Elementary school
Middle school
High school

Total charter schools
Total capital assets

*As of June 30, 2002

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Schedule of Capital Assets - By Function and Activity

September 30, 2002
Improvements
Other Machinery
Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment  Infrastructure Total
$ 2,661,935 $ 353,778 $ 3,150 $ 56,523 $ - $ 3,075,386
- - - 94,223 - 94,223
- - - 44,607 - 44,607
- - - 344,727 - 344,727
- - - 212,492 - 212,492
- - - 141,359 - 141,359
- - - 2,737,880 - 2,737,880
- 359,685 - 177,583 - 537,268
- 819,509 2,850 64,092 - 886,451
159,417 8,361,656 640,405 632,103 - 9,793,581
2,821,352 9,894,628 646,405 4,505,589 - 17,867,974
- - - 139,970 - 139,970
- 318 - 1,474,419 - 1,474,737
190,997 3,312,142 77,401 10,032,237 - 13,612,777
1,036,413 3,319,577 12,829 5,884,675 - 10,253,494
171,409 1,089,989 2,300 2,646,731 - 3,910,429
1,398,819 7,722,026 92,530 20,178,032 - 29,391,407
202,504 - 14,629,876 1,319,278 31,336,568 47,488,226
- - - 214,480 - 214,480
202,504 - 14,629,876 1,533,758 31,336,568 47,702,706
11,142,134 54,734,662 724,546 6,062,536 - 72,663,878
31,119,771 7,384,522 22,114,863 3,955,574 - 64,574,730
1,650,000 1,513,388 42,861 891,087 - 4,097,336
32,769,771 8,897,910 22,157,724 4,846,661 - 68,672,066
- - - 465,782 - 465,782
48,334,580 81,249,226 38,251,081 37,592,358 31,336,568 236,763,813
90,588,174
327,351,987
- - 1,218,921 641,785 - 1,860,706
- - 1,254,041 997,965 - 2,252,006
- - - 198,077 - 198,077
- - 2,472,962 1,837,827 - 4,310,789
$48,334,580 $81,249,226 $ 40,724,043 $ 39,430,185 $ 31,336,568 $ 331,662,776

Note: This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported
in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included
as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Function and Activity
General government:
Legislative
City manager
Personnel
City clerk
City engineer
City planner
Finance
Central stores
Maintenance compound
General government building

Total general government

Public safety:
Code enforcement
Building and zoning
Police
Fire
Rescue
Total public safety

Transportation:
Streets and sidewalks
Transit system

Total transportation

Human services:
Community services

Parks and recreation:
Recreation
Landscaping

Total parks and recreation

Intragovernmental services:
Surplus property

Construction in progress

Total capital assets

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets - By Function and Activity (City)
Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2002

Balance Balance

September 30, September 30,

2001 Additions Deductions 2002
$ 3,075,386 $ - - 3% 3,075,386
87,668 6,555 - 94,223
38,809 5,798 - 44,607
327,261 21,253 3,787 344,727
202,968 11,237 1,713 212,492
142,886 1,873 3,400 141,359
2,670,566 95,784 28,470 2,737,880
500,126 37,142 - 537,268
886,451 - - 886,451
9,587,244 206,337 - 9,793,581
17,519,365 385,979 37,370 17,867,974
148,960 2,809 11,799 139,970
1,404,684 103,448 33,395 1,474,737
12,638,988 1,124,556 150,767 13,612,777
9,845,728 407,766 - 10,253,494
3,686,136 228,033 3,740 3,910,429
27,724,496 1,866,612 199,701 29,391,407
45,588,956 1,899,270 - 47,488,226
134,504 79,976 - 214,480
45,723,460 1,979,246 - 47,702,706
68,519,530 4,243,399 99,051 72,663,878
61,536,156 3,182,194 143,620 64,574,730
4,008,724 88,612 - 4,097,336
65,544,880 3,270,806 143,620 68,672,066
610,425 - 144,643 465,782
60,784,317 29,804,449 592 90,588,174
$ 286,426,473 $ 41,550,491 624977 $ 327,351,987

(Continued)
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets - By Function and Activity (Charter Schools)
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
Function and Activity 2001 Additions Deductions 2002
Education:
Elementary schools $ 1840470 $ 20,236 $ - $ 1,860,706
Middle schools 2,230,105 21,901 2,252,006
High School 129,372 68,705 - 198,077
Total capital assets™ $ 4199947 $ 110,842 $ - $ 47310,789

*Charter schools reported as of June 30, 2002

Note: This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly,
the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the
capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage
of Total
Tax Outstanding
Total Current  Percentage Delinquent Total Collections  Delinquent
Fiscal Tax Tax of Levy Tax Tax to Tax Taxes
Year Levy Collections  Collected Collections Collections Levy Receivable
1 ?

1993 $8,510,517 $7,854,107 923%  $ 348,803 $8,202,910 96.4% $35,941

1994 9,086,334 8,643,149 95.1% 83,663 8,726,812 96.0% 44,851
1995 10,392,990 9,909,319 95.3% 65,380 9,974,699 96.0% 26,051
1996 12,312,139 11,627,581 94.4% 122,122 11,749,703 95.4% 15,694
1997 13,459,086 12,899,885 95.8% 66,869 12,966,754 96.3% 29,570
1998 15,429,999 14,824,322 96.1% 7,701 14,832,023 96.1% 19,791
1999 17,293,027 16,603,304 96.0% 15,489 16,618,793 96.1% 38,157

2000 19,352,972 18,590,738 96.1% 153,293 18,744,031 96.9% 28,642
2001 21,087,326 20,135,936 95.5% 183,579 20,319,515 96.4% 27,271

2002 26,241,228 25,167,556 95.9% 62,745 25,230,301 96.1% 21,012

(1) Represents gross taxes before cash discounts for early payment.

Source: (1) Certification of Taxable Values (Form DR-420 Line 17, "Total Prior Year Proceeds").
(2) Accountability Statement -Broward County Revenue Collection Division ( Line 3 (c), "Warrant Register").
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

South
Florida South Florida
City of Broward Water Broward Inland
Fiscal Pembroke Broward County Management Hospital Navigational Children's
Year Pines County  Schools District District District Council Total
Tax Millage Rates (1)

1993 4.1588 7.9618  9.8310 0.5470 2.1823 0.0520 24.7329
1994 4.0882 8.1327  9.8197 0.5970 2.1823 0.0510 24.8709
1995 4.0882 8.1165 10.0366 0.6470 2.1132 0.0400 25.0415
1996 4.0882 7.7524  9.9400 0.6720 2.1132 0.0380 24.6038
1997 3.9034 7.8380  9.9745 0.6970 2.1132 0.0050 24.5311
1998 3.9034 7.5710  9.7256 0.6970 2.1132 0.0470 24.0572
1999 3.9034 7.5710  9.7256 0.6970 2.1132 0.0470 24.0572
2000 3.9034 7.5710  9.1283 0.6970 2.0831 0.0440 23.4268
2001 3.9034 7.5250  8.9553 0.6970 1.9939 0.0410 23.1156
2002 4.4597 7.4005  8.7541 0.6970 1.8694 0.0385 0.3055 23.5247

(1) Per $1,000 of Taxable Assessed Value.

Source: Broward County Property Appraiser Millage Rate Sheet
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Fiscal
Year

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

2002

Assessments
Due

$ 5,831,733
3,244,824
3,245,747
6,954,283

11,850,777
11,409,924
10,801,585
8,100,160
9,028,349

8,773,222

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Special Assessment Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of
Collections
to

Assessments  Amount Accrued

Collected Due Current  Delinquent  Deferred Interest
$ 5,339,029 92% $144,165 $435,614 $8,521,161 $ 141,912
2,851,101 88% 388,827 408,598 8,583,482 317,989
2,863,631 88% 318,958 630,124 7,904,716 548,448
6,511,740 94% 180,053 720,467 21,324,383 1,039,553
13,276,560 112% 284,218 75,973 15,625,642 154,099
11,507,886 101% 231,753 85,140 10,906,851 99,435
10,993,389 102% 41,005 88,682 6,434,679 94,838
8,015,963 99% 99,506 96,178 3,609,471 113,038
9,144,660 101% 2,436 103,357 2,143,515 86,618
8,623,731 98% 68,880 175,631 951,458 97,391

98-

Total
$9,242,852
9,698,896
9,402,246
23,264,456
16,139,932
11,323,179
6,659,204
3,918,193
2,335,926

1,293,360



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

September 30, 2002

Effective taxable value (2002) $6,507,684,750
Plus exempt property 1,071,997.,027
Total assessed value $7.579.681,777
Amount of debt outstanding:
Public Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 $ 490,000
Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 2,365,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 6,730,000
Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 24,055,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 44,215,000
Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 19,600,000
Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A 31,910,000
Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B 20,060,000
149,425,000
Less reserve for debt service 11,732,123
Net amount of debt outstanding $_ 137,692,877
Legal Debt Margin:

Currently, the City does not have any legal restrictions on the debt margin. However, the City is governed by
the covenants of individual revenue bonds if the City plans to issue additional parity bonds.

Each outstanding Bond Series has specific requirements that must be met before the City can issue additional
parity bonds. The current requirements are as follows:

Public Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992

Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for acquisition or construction of
additions, extensions or improvements to the Facility, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric franchise fee
revenues for the preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on
all existing and proposed bonds.

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993

Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for acquisition or construction of capital
improvements in the City, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric public service tax revenues for the
preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on all existing and
proposed bonds.

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for acquisition or construction of
additions, extensions or improvements to the Facility, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric franchise fee

revenues for the preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on
all existing and proposed bonds.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1998

Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for the acquisition or construction of
capital improvements in the City, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric public service tax revenues for the
preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on all existing and
proposed bonds.

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for acquisitions or construction of
additions, extensions or improvements to the Project, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric franchise fee
revenues for the preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on
all existing and proposed bonds.

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

Additional bonds payable from pledged revenues may be issued only for the acquisition or construction of
capital improvements in the City, or for refunding of bonds, if the electric public service tax revenues for the
preceding fiscal year equal at least 125% of the maximum bond debt service requirements on all existing and
proposed bonds.

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, and
Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B

Additional bonds payable from the pledged revenues may be issued only for acquisition or construction of
additional educational facilities and related facilities for Charter Schools, or for refunding of bonds, if the
Charter Schools and related facilities revenues for the most recent full fiscal year equal at least 120% of the
maximum bond debt service requirements on all outstanding Series 2001 A Bonds, Series 2001B Bonds, and
any additional Charter School Bonds.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

September 30, 2002
Gross
Debt
Outstanding Percent
) 2) Amount
City of Pembroke Pines:
Total Direct Debt $ - - % $ -
Broward County:
Public Improvement Bonds 368,200,000 7.18% 26,425,021
Broward County School Board:
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 8,388,717 7.18% 602,042
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 90,080,000 7.18% 6,464,872
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 51,480,000 7.18% 3,694,623
Total Overlapping Debt 518,148,717 37,186,558
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $518,148,717 $37,186,558

(1) Gross general obligation debt outstanding.

(2) Determined by ratio of 2002 effective taxable value in overlapping unit and the
City of Pembroke Pines as shown on the 2002 DR-420.

Note: The City of Pembroke Pines did not have any General Bonded Debt outstanding
during the past ten years. Consequently, the following statistical tables have been omitted:
(a) Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita.
(b) Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Debt Service
Coverage

Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, and
Charter School Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B

Debt Service Requirements (1)

2001A 2001B
Pledged Charter School ~ Charter School
Fiscal Revenues % Revenue Bonds  Revenue Bonds
Year (2) Change (3) 4) Total Coverage
2002 $6,294,213 -1.5% $963,374 $281,038 $1,244,412 5.06

Coverage of Estimated Combined Maximum Annual Debt Service:
Rentals from the Charter Schools, the Early Learning Centers, and the

Academic Village Campus Shared-Use Facility - Most Recent Fiscal Year $6,294,213
Combined Maximum Annual Debt Service 3,605,591
Coverage 1.75

(1) Excludes bank paying agent fees.

(2) Pledged revenues consist of the rentals from the Charter Schools, the Early Learning Centers, and the Academic
Village Campus Shared-Use Facility on an even parity for both issues.

(3) No statistics are available prior to fiscal year 2002 since the bonds were issued on December 11, 2001.

(4) No statistics are available prior to fiscal year 2002 since the bonds were issued on April 4, 2002.

-104-



-G0T-

‘sjuuwoAoIduwr [e1rded I9Y10 SNOLIBA PUB JIUQD) 0IN0SY Juno X D) e (9) ‘uonels 11y (q) ‘IIuad AJTunuruiod JOTuas 0} sjusuraaoidur (8) papuny ansst puoq sy, (1)

000°STH'6¥T$  000°090°02$  000°016°TE  $ 000700961 $ 000°SITHY $ 000°SSOYC $ 000°0EL9 $ 000°S9€'CT $ 00006y ¢ ‘urpuersino fediourig
Y16°06S°T9C$  0€T'6TELES 088FYTI9  § 0SSHTSTE $§ SYOLSY8L § L9ELOIL8E § LOG'S6ETT § STIVIYT § O0ITHOS §  9OTAISIQIP [BI0L

CLSTPES SLEOITT 00S°TE€T°C - - - - - - 1€0C
CIT'ovE'e T98°TIT1 0STEETC - - - - - - 0€0c
EILTYE e €9VTIT T 0ST0ET’C - - - - - - 620¢
SLT'TYE'E CLT'60T T 000°€€T°C - - - - - - 8¢0C
LEY'TEG'D T9T'80T°1 00S°TETC - CLS'T6SE - - - - LToT
£99°6269 €9L°L0TT 000°TETC - 006°065°€ - - - - 920¢
6VLT€6%9 T9T°01C°1 0SLTETC - LEL06SE - - - - Yré
$¥9°796°9 €9L°01T°1 000ET°C - Yy v01°e - 8EY'ETS - - ¥20¢
L60°LEE 0T 797°60T°1 0SLTETC 000°L1S°T 690°€0T°¢ CLE'09S'T  $ P9v1S - - (xré
PrILYE0T €10°TITT 0STEETC 0ST615°1 TET°S0T°E 0007981 $ 00SvTS - - 44\
€50°LYE 0T CI0°TITT 00S°0€T°C STIETS’T ¢T0°901°¢ CLE'CIS'T  § 910°€TS - - 120¢
8PS SSE 0T €97°60T°1 000°SETC 0SL'€TS T €9%°€01°¢ 0SL'898°T ¢ TTESTS - - 0coc
LTY'TSEOT CI0°TITT 00S°TETC ST0'615°1 796°C01°¢ SLEOLS'T  $ €6S°91¢ - - 610¢
TIEPSE0T €9C°'TIT1 0ST0ET’C 0501281 $99°101°¢ SLECLST  $ 60L°9T¢ - - 810¢
990°LSE 0T T10°01C°1 T90'PE€1°T SLL'61S'T 9Tr'660°¢ 0008L8°T  § T6L°CTS - - L10T
60€°79¢°01 €IS'TITT 00T TET°C 0S€°8TS°1 $90°L60°€E 0STYLST  § 1€6°81S - - 910¢
PES09€°0T CL6TITT 0S9°0€T°C 006°€TS°1 879°660°¢C 0STLLET  § 1€1°916 - - S10T
8YT'9LEOT STLTITT 189°CETT 090°1€6°T 9LETOT E 00T188°1T  $ 90T'LTS - - ¥10¢
08LYLEOT T18'80T°1 Y6TTETC SLT'SEST 6LE°00T°¢E 0TL088T § 00€°LTS - - €10T
9€9°TE9°01 £99°691°1 8LY'TETT SIT'LES'T 16£°660°C €8CI88' T § 909°9T¢ - - 41114
0EV¥E9°01 LLY'SOP'T 609°€€1°C 059°9¢€6°1 1S9760°¢ LBLE]ST  § 967°0¢s - - 110¢
SET'EV9 01 CES 891 1 EVL'EET'T 0SEPEST 01+°001°¢ LTO88S'T  § 0L0°8TS - - oroc
TET'6£9°01 €L9'VOY T Y6 1E1C 0S8°0vS°1 S61°L60°E SIF V88T § €50°0cs - - 600¢
19%°89°01 L90'691°1 PrIvETT SLY'PPS'T S09°660°¢ 0SL°€88T  § 0zTr'12s - - 800¢
¥r0°879°01 86C°991°1 YTLTETT 00T0vS'1 r6'S60°c 01L°068T $ 0L1°TTS - - L00¢
€6V TS9°01 LLTTLY'T PIEYETT 796°6€5°1 00%°€60°¢ SYT068'T  $ €67°TCS - - 900¢
8L6'8Y9°01 89L°€91'1 6LEEETT 058°8€6°1 €6T°860°¢ SPO'c68'T  § €89°T¢S - - S00T
LLT'TSY 0T LITY9Y'1 6LSPET'T 8€0°LYS'T 976'S60°¢ 091°688°1T  $ LSE0TS - - ¥00¢
IPTIPLOT § 89¥'6TI'T § 6LSTEST  $ 00S°€06 § LTLL8ST $ SLIYVEIT § LSY'ECSS  STI'PCr'C $ 01TH0S  § €00C
ERIINEN d100¢C V1002 T00T 6661 8661 €661 €661 T661 OE 19qudds
192 SALIAg SALIAg SALIAS SALIAG SALIAS SALIAG SALIAS SALIAS Surpug Jeax [eoSL]
[e10], ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘spuog ‘AY
ANUAARY ANUAARY ANUAARY ANUAAY ANUAARY ANUAAY ANUAARY Surpunjoy
[ooyos [ooyos juowRaoxdw]  Juoworoidw]  Juoweaoidw  JuowAsoidw Juswesoidwy juswsoxdwy
] 191D 1qnd ende) 1qnd [ende) 1qnd 1qnd
000°090°0c$  000°0T6'TES 000°009°61$ 000°0¥C'S¥$ 000°SSOvCS 000°08L°L$  000°00T°STS 000°SS8°cS
sasng pue sndwe) syuamaAoIdwy s100lo1g A3eqIA IUR)) 4] 3sIn0)
Aioeq [enua) IoyQ pue rende) 1010 OTWOPEOY JIOTUQg hi(s)
[00yoS S[00YdS Yred ‘Xouuy pue 100708 pue [00YdS U104 T804
RLeyD RLeYD ad11od USTH JoMeyD)  Q[PPIA JOMeYD  Isamyinog

00T aem hoa—soan—om Jo se spuog w-—m-ﬁ-&amﬁao UO IIAIIS 1q3(J JO INPayd§
BPLIO ] ‘Sauld d¥0IquId ] Jo A1)



City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unemployment Rate Expressed

Income Grade Commercial As a Percentage (5)
Per School Bank

Fiscal  Population Capita Enrollment Deposits United Broward Pembroke
Year a Q) 3 “é@ States Florida County Pines
1993 75,014 $23,840 5,194 $ 319,301,000 74% 8.2 8.1 54
1994 81,374 25,494 5,995 453,702,000 6.3*%  6.7* 6.5% 4.3%
1995 87,948 26,192 6,804 681,363,000 5.6%  5.5% 5.6% 3.7*
1996 89,753 27,129 7,858 715,055,000 5.5%  5.4% 5.5% 3.6%
1997 104,143 27,530 8,058 1,863,205,000 5.0%  4.9% 4.9% 3.2%
1998 112,692 28,546 9,404 808,844,000 4.1 4.5 4.8 3.1
1999 120,091 29,442 10,924 1,382,264,000 4.1 4.1 4.1 2.7
2000 137,427 29,409 11,694 1,380,262,000 4.0 3.6 3.7 24
2001 141,659 (2a) 11,637 1,374,147,000 4.4 3.9 4.0 2.6
2002 144,792 (2a) 11,480 1,575,812,000 5.8 53 59 39

Source:

(1) Year 2000 is from the U.S. Census. All others are estimates from the University of Florida's
Statistical Abstract.

(2) Represents income per capita for the County as provided by the U.S. Department of Commerce,
Bureau of Economic Analysis:
(a) The last three years are not available because the U.S. Department of Commerce,

Bureau of Economic Analysis is still compiling the data.

(3) Broward County School Board, Office of Property Management.

(4) Florida Bankers Association commercial deposits as of September 30th.

(5) Florida Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Market Information.

*The unemployment rates noted with an asterisk represent the average for the twelve months ended

September 30th. All others represent the average for the calendar year.
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Taxpayer

Pembroke Lakes Mall LTD
Pasadena Place Associates
Prudential Insurance Co. of America
Marquesa Apartment Corporation
Taplin Falls Ltd.

KLS Flamingo Land Trust

West Fork C Associates I LP

WRI / Pembroke Ltd.

Pembroke Cove Apartments LLC

Merry Land & Invest Co. Inc

City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
Principal Taxpayers

September 30, 2002

Type of Business

Shopping Center
Apartments and condominiums
Shopping Center
Apartments and condominiums
Apartments and condominiums
Shopping Center
Shopping Center
Shopping Center
Apartments and condominiums

Apartments and condominiums

Total Taxable Assessed Value of 10 Largest Taxpayers

Total Taxable Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers

Total Taxable Assessed Value of All Taxpayers

Percentage
of Total
Taxable Taxable
Valuation Valuation
$ 91,810,560 1.56%
65,177,600 1.11%
40,264,220 0.68%
38,776,730 0.66%
32,337,020 0.55%
31,655,350 0.54%
30,743,500 0.52%
28,959,840 0.49%
25,638,910 0.44%
25,028,270 0.43%
410,392,000 6.97%
5.473.687,183 93.03%
$ 5.884,079,183  100.00%

Source: Broward County Property Appraiser's "Top Valued Properties" Report for 2001 tax year.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

Miscellaneous Stastical Data

Date of Incorporation
Form of Government
Area

Miles of Streets

Number of fire stations
Firemen and support staff

Number of police stations
Full-time sworn officers and support staff

Number of elementary schools
Number of students

Number of middle schools
Number of students

Number of high schools
Number of students

Number of water accounts
Average daily consumption
Miles of water mains

Sanitary sewers
Number of lift stations
Storm sewers

Fire hydrants

Building permits issued

September 30, 2002

Number of parks including 1 operated by the county

Number of golf courses

Number of libraries

Number of full-time civil service employees

Number of part-time and temporary employees

Total number of employees
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1960
Commission/Manager
34.25 square miles
455.92

247

272

11
11,480

5
6,521

2
6,615

43,977
11.92 million gallons per day
489

399 miles

168

226 miles

4,121

10,140

28 parks with 923.21 acres

4 private courses
1 owned by City

3 operated by Broward County

1,199
390
1,589
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida
General Information

Introduction

The City of Pembroke Pines is a multi-cultural, ethnically diverse and integrated city, located in the
Miami-Fort Lauderdale Consolidated Metropolitan Statistical Area, which is the 12" largest in the
country. During the year the City has a mean average annual temperature of 75 degrees, which allows
many residents and visitors to enjoy a relaxed lifestyle geared to the outdoors. The general terrain of this
residential city is similar to that of other western Broward County communities. Elevations range from 7
to 8 feet above sea level. Fort Lauderdale, 30 minutes away northeast, and Miami, 45 minutes south of
Pembroke Pines, provide numerous cultural advantages of a larger metropolitan area.

Airports

The City of Pembroke Pines has the benefit of being served by a number of airlines, as the Fort
Lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport is only 25 miles northeast, and the Miami International
Airport, located south of Pembroke Pines, is a little over a 45 minute drive. The North Perry Airport is
also located in Pembroke Pines; it is a general aviation facility open to non-commercial, non-jet aircraft.
Facilities include a charter service, aircraft rentals, repair and fuel for small aircraft, as well as a flight
school.

Road and Highway Systems

Road and highway facilities are excellent in Pembroke Pines. Pines Boulevard is the main east-west
corridor that connects into beaches at the east end and into the Everglades at the west end. The City has a
complete and adequate network of paved and signalized roadways, bike paths, and sidewalks that meet
the latest national standards. The Florida Turnpike passes through the eastern section of the City and
provides transportation to the north central part of the State and as far south as the entrance to the Florida
Keys. Interstate 95, which is about 5 miles east of the community, provides alternative north-south
transportation to the City and other areas of the southeastern section of Florida. Interstate 75, a north-
south controlled access highway located in the geographic center of the City, provides north-south
transportation from Miami to Tampa.

Park & Recreation

The City of Pembroke Pines operates a year-round comprehensive community recreation program. The
hub of the City's athletic, cultural, institutional, and social programs for adults and youth are the six
recreation centers. Programs include such diverse activities as art, baseball, football, swimming, tennis,
soccer, roller hockey, karate, gymnastics, preschool and after-school programs, Jazzercise, and dancing.
Over 12,000 children participate in supervised sports programs in Pembroke Pines. Located throughout
the City are 28 neighborhood and community parks totaling 923 acres. In addition, five golf courses are
located within the City including a municipal course with club facilities. Walnut Creek Park, an eight-
acre park located on the east side of the City, will open in March 2003. In August 2002, the City
purchased over 60 acres in western Pembroke Pines to be developed as a soccer complex to include
wetlands and passive areas. A number of the residential developments in the community are served by
their own private recreational facilities.
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City of Pembroke Pines, Florida

General Information

Medical Facilities

Health care services for the City of Pembroke Pines residents are provided through Memorial Hospital
West (located at the northeast corner of Pines Boulevard and Flamingo Road), Memorial Hospital
Pembroke (located on the southeast corner of University Drive and Sheridan Street) and the Memorial
Urgent Care Center (located on the eastern side of Douglas Road, between Pines Boulevard and
Pembroke Road). These facilities are all a part of the Memorial Health Care System and offer state of the
art diagnostics, with a combined staff of over 900 physicians.

Memorial Manor is Broward County's first public, skilled nursing facility. The 120-bed nursing home,
located adjacent to the Memorial Urgent Care Center on Douglas Road, provides long-term nursing home
care and short-term rehabilitative care.

Educational Facilities

The City of Pembroke Pines is a true pioneer in charter school education. The City currently operates
three charter elementary schools, two charter middle schools and one charter high school that serve over
4,000 students. These facilities offer smaller class sizes, and complement the already existing public
education system provided through the Broward County School Board. In addition to the charter schools,
the City also has nine elementary schools, three middle schools and one other high school.

In addition to this, the City also offers post-graduate education. The Broward County Community College
has two campuses throughout the City, the south campus located just east of University Drive and Pines
Boulevard and the Pines Center located in Academic Village. This unique multi-building facility located
west of Interstate 75, also houses Florida International University (FIU), which is a part of the State
University system, offering under-graduate and graduate programs.

Communications

All principal television networks are received within the City with broadcast stations in Miami, Fort
Lauderdale, and West Palm Beach. Cable television is provided to the entire City by Comcast, formerly
AT&T Cable Services, BellSouth Entertainment, Inc. and by Tele-Media, Inc. The City has its own
informational cable channel that televises all Commission meetings and provides information such as
upcoming events and public service information.

City information can also be accessed through the Internet site, www.ppines.com. On the web site,
information including Commission meeting dates, trash and recycling schedules, a calendar of events,
budget information, and annual financial statements are available.
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